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Thursday, August 4, 2022
--- On commencing at 9:40 a.m.

MS. ANDERSON:  Hello, everyone.  I guess we're ready to begin, and I'm getting myself oriented to my screen here.

There we go.  Thank you for joining us for the presentation day for this EB-2021-0243 proceeding.  I'm frozen.

[Technical difficulties]

MS. ANDERSON:  Can people hear me?

MS. SANASIE:  Yes, you sound good.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Thank you.  I guess I froze for a bit.  Please let me know if any of us freeze again, and we've got some backup choices for our WiFi, so we've got some flexibility.

Thank you for joining us for the presentation day for the EB-2021-0243 proceeding, in which the OEB is considering the export transmission service rate for Ontario.

For this proceeding, the OEB extracted evidence that was filed as part of Hydro One's joint rate application, which is file EB-2021-0110, and initiated this separate proceeding.

This is part of a broader initiative to consider several matters related to transmission, and this is the first phase.

My name is Lynne Anderson.  I am the presiding commissioner here today, and with me are fellow commissioners, Pankaj Sardana and Anthony Zlahtic.

For this presentation day we're expecting presentations from Hydro One and its two consultants, Charles River Associates, or CRA, and Elenchus, and from the IESO and from the Association of Power Producers of Ontario, or APPrO, and its consultant, Power Advisory.

This is not a hearing.  We will hear presentations, and then the commissioners expect to have a number of questions.

We've scheduled the Panel questions after each presentation, and -- but it is possible that some of our questions will be partially answered by one party, but we'll have follow-up questions on the same topic for another party, so it is our hope that Hydro One, the IESO, and APPrO will be here for the whole presentation day.  So please be prepared that even after you've completed your presentation we may go back to you for some follow-up questions.

And parties are not being sworn in or affirmed, so we can be a little less formal in our process today than we would be at a hearing.  And so the intention is really to help the Panel in understanding the issues.

Each commissioner has some questions based on what we have read in the evidence, in the interrogatory responses, and the transcripts from the technical conference.  And we may have more questions after hearing from your presentations today, but please don't read anything into the questions that we're asking.  We're really truly trying to make sure we have a clear understanding of the issues and how those issues interact.  We have not reached any conclusions for this proceeding, and we don't intend to until we have reviewed all of your submissions.

We will speak a little bit more about the submissions at the end of today.  So stay tuned for that.

So from there, Mr. Sidlofsky, I would like to turn it over to you and your OEB Staff team and to give us some, I guess, what do we call it, Zoom etiquette, or some of the technical details of how we're going to be running through today, so I will turn it to you, and also to do -- to get our land acknowledgement.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thank you.  Good morning, everyone.  My name is James Sidlofsky, and I am counsel with the OEB in this matter, and as Ms. Anderson noted, we're here for the presentation day, the virtual presentation day, on this matter and this is -- this relates to a portion of the generic ETR proceeding related to export transmission rates.

Just a few technical notes, because this is a virtual setting.  This day is really set aside for the Panel members, for the commissioners, to ask questions of the presenting panel, but there may be times when -- when other participants in this proceeding need to say something or are asked to say something.

When that is not happening, I am going to ask all of you to mute your audio and turn off your cameras so that only the -- only the commissioners and the panels and their representatives are on camera and off of mute.

Second, there is a -- this session is being transcribed, but there is also a chat function in Zoom, on the Zoom platform, and nothing in the chat program -- in the chat platform will be recorded or will appear on the transcript.  So you can send messages to each other or to the group, because they won't be transcribed.

And third -- and I believe many of you will have done this already -- we would ask that everyone ensure that their name that they have associated with their picture right now is their full name so that if you do need to speak today the court reporter can accurately report what is said and by whom.

And finally, if anyone does need to speak up during this virtual session, we will ask that you repeat your name and whom you represent, and again, that will assist our reporter in transcribing the matter.

And that is particularly important if no one has heard from you before through the course of the day and you are a new speaker today.

We are planning breaks through the day today.  The first one -- the first morning break is scheduled for 2:30 this morning -- or, excuse me, 10:30 this morning, and the lunch break is scheduled for 12:15 this afternoon.  Those times may change a bit depending on the progress of the panels.

On that note, I will introduce the members of Board Staff who are here with me this morning.  Michael Price, the case manager for this matter, Andrew Pietrewicz.  Rudra Mukherji of the registrar's office, and Ashley Sanasie, also of the registrar's office.

And I am going to -- before I speak to -- we're not going to call them appearances this morning because we are keeping things a little less formal, but I will be asking people who do want to identify themselves in this session to do so, including the representatives of the parties who are going to be presenting panels this morning.

But first, I would like to ask Ashley Sanasie to deal with our land acknowledgement.  Ashley.

MS. SANASIE:  Thanks.  The Ontario Energy Board acknowledges that our headquarters in Toronto is located on the traditional territory of many nations, including the Mississaugas of the Credit, the Anishnaabeg, the Chippewa, the Haudenosaunee, and the Wendat peoples.

This area is now home to many diverse First Nations, Inuit, and Metis peoples.

We also acknowledge that Toronto is covered by Treaty 13 with the Mississaugas of the Credit.

We are grateful for the opportunity to gather and work on this land and recognize our shared responsibility to support and be good stewards of it.
Appearances:


MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thank you.  I am going to move on to getting names of people in attendance, and what I would like to do is begin with people who are presenting panels this morning, so I will start with Hydro One.  We will move on to the IESO, and we will finish that part of it up with APPrO.  So Hydro One, Mr. Myers, I think you have just popped up on the screen here, so if you could introduce your panel, and then we will move on to others before we actually get to your panel's presentation.

MR. MYERS:  Sure.  Thanks very much, Jamie.  It is Jonathan Myers, counsel on behalf of Hydro One.  With me today from Hydro One is Eloise Heloise Apesteguy-Reux.  She is senior regulatory advisor.

The panel from Hydro One today for the presentation is Stephen Vetsis, director of pricing and regulatory policy, and with him is Clement Li, manager of pricing.

Later on we will hear from the panel from Charles Rivers Associates, a consultant to Hydro One.  And they're represented by David DesLauriers.  He is vice-president with Charles River Associates.

And after that we will hear from the panel from Elenchus Research Associates, represented by Andrew Blair, research analyst.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thanks very much, Mr. Myers.

And, sorry, the IESO will be next?

MR. DUFFY:  Good morning.  It is Patrick Duffy, counsel for the IESO.  With me today is George Dimitropoulos, regulatory affairs with the IESO.  And our panel today will consist of Tom Chapman and Jason Kwok.  Mr. Kwok is the supervisor for market evolution and integration and Mr. Chapman is a senior manager for wholesale market development.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thanks, Mr. Duffy.  And finally, Mr. Vellone, I think you are around.  Could you introduce yourself, and give the names of your panel members.

MR. VELLONE:  Thank you, Mr. Sidlofsky.  Good morning, Panel.

My name is John Vellone and I am external counsel to the Association of Power Producers of Ontario, APPrO, and with me this morning is David Butters, president of APPrO.

Our panel will consist this morning of two expert witnesses from Power Advisory, Mr. Brady Yauch and Mr. Travis Lusney.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Mr. Vellone, thanks very much and good morning, Mr. Butters, as well.

That is it for the panels and their representatives.  I would like to open things up for others who would like to identify themselves this morning as being in the session.

Let's turn your cameras on, turn your mics on and say hi.

MR. AIKEN:  Hi, Randy Aiken, consultant to the London Property Management Association.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Good morning, Mr. Aiken.

MR. POLLOCK:  Hello, everyone.  Scott Pollock counsel with Canadian Manufacturers & Exporters.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thanks, Mr. Pollock.  I see Mr. Ladanyi pop up there.

MR. LADANYI:  Good morning, everyone.  My name is Tom Ladanyi, I am a consultant to Energy Probe.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thanks.  Good morning, Tom.  Let's go with who I see on my screen, Mark Rubenstein.

MR. RUBENSTEIN:  Mark Rubenstein, counsel for the School Energy Coalition.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  And next for me is Julie Girvan.

MS. GIRVAN:  Julie Girvan for the Consumers Council of Canada.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Dr. Higgin?

DR. HIGGIN:  Roger Higgin, also for Energy Probe.  Thank you.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Mr. Harper.

MR. HARPER:  Good morning.  My name is Bill Harper, I'm a consultant for the Vulnerable Energy Consumers Coalition.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Good morning, Mr. Harper.  Mr. McGillivray, you are next on my screen.

MR. McGILLIVRAY:  Good morning.  Jonathan McGillivray, counsel for Anwaatin.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Good morning.  Thank you.  Mr. Brophy?

MR. BROPHY:  Good morning, Panel and attendees.  My name is Michael Brophy on behalf of Pollution Probe, and I believe Mr. John DeVenz is also in attendance.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thanks, Mr. Brophy, and I do see Mr. DeVenz on my screen as well.

MR. DEVENZ:  Yes, John DeVenz.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Good morning, John.

MR. DEVENZ:  Good morning, thank you.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Is there anyone else who would like to identify themselves?  I am not seeing anyone else popping up on the screen here.

MS. GRICE:  Good morning.  It is Shelley Grice representing AMPCO.  And with me today is Rhonda Wright.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thanks, Shelley.  I think I saw Mr. Pattani's name as well.

MR. PATTANI:  Thank you, Mr. Sidlofsky.  Good morning, everyone.  My name is Pattani, I am an intervenor.  Thank you.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thanks, Mr. Pattani, and good morning.

MR. PATTANI:  Good morning.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Mr. Stephenson.

MR. STEPHENSON:  Good morning.  Richard Stephenson, I am counsel for the Power Workers' Union.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Good morning, Mr. Stephenson.  I am not sure if there is anyone else.  If there is, and if you would like to speak up, please do so.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Good morning.  This is David DesLauriers with Charles River Associates.  I apologize, I am just joining the meeting now.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thank you.  I believe -- not hearing anyone else, Ms. Anderson, I think it is back to you.

MS. ANDERSON:  I have to remember to go off mute.  How many times will we do that today?

I guess the one thing I wanted to note is that as far as logistics today, and you were introduced to the staff team, I can tell you that the Panel always looks to our hearings advisor, who is Ashley Sanasie today.

So if you have any logistical problems, she is probably a good first point of contact.  And she is the kind of the master of the Zoom, and sends us off into breakout rooms and tells us when to come back.

So I wanted to point her out.  It is an important role for us today.

Just before we start the presentations, I wanted to have a quick check-in on the status of undertakings from the technical conference.  And scanning through them, it looks like pretty much everyone got some undertakings, Hydro One, Elenchus, the IESO, and APPrO.

We noticed in coming up with our questions today as the Panel, we thought some might get answered by the undertakings.  So we wanted to know the status of them, and if you think our questions will be answered by the undertaking, please for sure let us know.

So can we just let us know how we're doing with those undertakings.

MR. MYERS:  Maybe I will start off on behalf of Hydro One, CRA and Elenchus, we're making good progress and we anticipate filing those by the end of the day.

I think our presenters are prepared to answer your questions and to the extent that they need to refer to details that will be found in undertaking responses, that is their intention to do so.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  And the IESO?

MR. DUFFY:  Good morning.  Yes, I would echo what was just said by Mr. Myers.  The IESO is making progress on those today, and working obviously on one of them with Hydro One, which we hope to complete and have filed by the end of today.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  Mr. Vellone, I saw some for APPrO as well.

MR. VELLONE:  Yes.  I would echo what Mr. Duffy and Mr. Myers said.  We're in very much the same situation.  We're basically proofreading them now.  If it is going to be answered in the response, I think our answers will be prepared to speak to it.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  It may help us in deciding some of the questions we will ask today.  Okay.

So first up is Hydro One, and would you -- so you are going to run your own slides, I assume?

MR. MYERS:  Yes.  That was our expectation.  We have someone available who can put that on the screen and manage that, if that is easiest for everyone.

MS. ANDERSON:  I think that is our hope for everyone today.  So you can take it away.

MR. MYERS:  Very good.  I will just reintroduce the Hydro One panel.  Stephen Vetsis, director of pricing and regulatory policy, together with Clement Li, manager of pricing.  Thank you.
HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. – PANEL 1

Stephen Vetsis

Clement Li

Presentation by Mr. Vetsis:


MR. VETSIS:  Okay.  Good morning, members of the Panel.  Maybe through thumbs up or something, if everyone can confirm they can hear me right now.  Perfect.  No muting snafus.

Today I will be presenting an overview.  If you could go to the next slide, please -- an overview of the evidence submitted by Hydro One in this proceeding.

At any time during the presentation, feel free to stop me if you have any questions, and I will make sure to pause at the end of every slide just to give you that opportunity as well.

At a high level, the presentation today will cover a bit of procedural context.  Ms. Anderson may have doubled down a little bit on that at the outset, so we can shorten that a little bit.

Provide some context in terms of the ETS rate-setting, a history of how the rate has been set in Ontario, give a little bit of an overview of the relationship between the export transmission service rates and the uniform transmission rates that are paid by domestic customers.

Provide a summary of Hydro One's position in this proceeding, and finally, a very high-level description of the supporting reports which have been commissioned by Hydro One to support this Panel in its decision making.

So if we could go to the next slide, please; thank you.

Really, the proceeding here today stems from Hydro One's last rate application.  Hydro One had proposed to maintain the current ETS rate and in the decision for that proceeding, the OEB made some findings requesting further information.

Specifically, the decision found that the consideration -- that the use of shared network facilities by export customers should be considered in the setting of ETS rates.

The OEB also directed Hydro One to provide an ETS study, using a cost allocation methodology that includes the allocation of shared network costs to exporters.

As well as the OEB indicated that it would be assisted by an updated jurisdictional review of ETS rates and the expectation was, recognizing the IESO's responsibility for the market, that Hydro One would consult with the IESO and OEB Staff on the jurisdictional review.

So if we can go to the next slide, please.  As noted earlier by Ms. Anderson, the requested evidence was filed by Hydro One in its joint rate application or JRAP.  The current application is before the OEB and assumes no change in the current ETS rate of $1.85 per megawatt-hour, and as Ms. Anderson covered, the OEB decided through its own motion to hear the issues related to the CTS rate through a specific separate proceeding, and also had requested for additional clarification on both Hydro One and the ISO's views with respect to the appropriate ETS rate.  And the moving over of the evidence and those views were filed by Hydro One on October 14th of last year.

So if we could move on, in terms of the ETS rate-setting context.  So ETS is transmission service relating to the use of the IESO-controlled grid for transmission of energy out of the IESO-control area and into neighbouring transmission systems.

So under Chapter 10, section 4 of the Market Rules, the IESO is required to collect charges for ETS from each customer that uses the grid for this purpose.

Under section 4.5 of that same chapter, the Market Rules require that the rates and charges for ETS are to be established by the OEB, pursuant to the OEB Act.

So export customers in Ontario only pay the ETS rate.  They do not pay the UTR charges that are charged to domestic customers.

The IESO remits the ETS revenue that is collected to Hydro One as the only transmitter that owns and operates intertie facilities accounted for in the rates.

Hydro One uses that revenue to offset its transmission revenue requirement, which reduces the uniform transmission rates that are paid by Ontario customers, and for context, the forecast ETS revenues in our joint rate application are approximately $37 million per year, each year.

So if you go to the next slide, please.  The ETS rate had been considered in multiple prior proceedings before the OEB.  In terms of the history, the rate was first approved on an interim basis in May 2000 in the RP 1999 proceeding.

It was established at a dollar per megawatt-hour, and this rate was identified by the OEB to represent a reasonable compromise amongst the competing interests that were discussed in that proceeding.

At the time, Hydro One was directed to monitor the export rate functions and report on whether the ETS rate needed further review.

So in a subsequent application, EB-2006-0501, Hydro One filed a jurisdictional review of ETS rates.  As part of that application, the OEB approved a settlement agreement which maintained that existing rate.  And that settlement also identified the IESO as the party to prepare an ETS rate study for the -- to assist the OEB.

In a subsequent proceeding, EB-2010-0002, the IESO filed that ETS rate study, which was proposed by CRA, and at the time the proposal was that the status quo be maintained.  The OEB found that an additional study was needed to assess a range of potential rates, and at that time the OEB increased the ETS rate to two dollars per megawatt-hour.

So in EB-2012-0031 the IESO filed a further ETS rate study that was prepared by CRA, which reviewed multiple -- had multiple proposals, and at the time the IESO noted that the elimination of the tariff would best promote efficient operation of the wholesale energy market.

In its decision, the OEB directed Hydro One to include in its next transmission rate application a proposal for an appropriate cost-based rate that was based on a cost allocation study.

And in EB-2014-0410, Hydro One filed that study, which was completed by Elenchus, in which it recommended a rate of $1.70 per megawatt-hour as reflective of cost.

The OEB approved a settlement agreement in that proceeding, under which parties had agreed to a rate of $1.85 per megawatt-hour, and that rate has been approved -- has continued since in subsequent Hydro One transmission revenue-requirement proceedings, most recently in Hydro One's most recent custom IR application, EB-2019-0082.

So at a high level the current ETS rate itself arises from settlement.  It is not a rate that is based entirely on cost allocation.  Rather, it is informed by a cost-allocation study.

If we could go to the next slide, please.

So I think it is important to talk a little bit about the relationship between the export transmission service rate and the UTRs.  The ETS rate itself impacts both costs for exporters and network transmission rates for domestic customers.

As we talked about earlier, the ETS revenues reduce the network transmission charges paid by Ontario customers.

ETS rates themselves, they have a neutral impact on the overall recovery of Hydro One's transmission revenue requirement.  They're applied as an offset to the revenue requirement collected by Ontario customers.  Therefore, if ETS revenues are reduced, the network UTRs paid by domestic customers increase and vice versa.

The settlement of the IESO's transmission rights clearing account will be discussed in more detail in subsequent presentation, but we do want to note that it is a separate mechanism that does not impact the ETS rate or the UTRs paid by domestic customers.  As a transmitter, Hydro One does not receive payments from the TR accounts.  Therefore, there is no impact on our revenue requirement arising from settlement of those amounts.

I think further details regarding aspects of settlement of the ETS and the TRCA will be filed by the end of the day in response to Undertaking JT1.03 in this proceeding, which will provide further details, but we are certainly happy to answer any questions that you may have from that aspect today.

So as I noted earlier in PO number 1 from JRAP, the OEB had requested clarity on Hydro One's position.  And from Hydro One's view, really the purpose to the ETS is to recover the cost of export transmission's use of the transmission system from which they benefit.  The ETS rate essentially limits cross-subsidization between Ontario transmission customers and exporters.  And when we say transmission system, in this context we're referring specifically to the towers, poles, wires, et cetera that Hydro One builds and maintains and which comprise Hydro One's revenue requirement.

However, the level of ETS can have an impact on the market-based mechanisms associated with export transactions, and as a result primary consideration should be on setting an ETS level that results in the lowest overall costs and which provides the greatest overall benefits to the Ontario electricity system.

So in other words, a way of saying this is ultimately this proceeding is about finding the right balance between setting an ETS rate at a level which recovers the appropriate level of costs from exporters, but also a level that can achieve the broader cost and system benefits that I discussed earlier and which you will hear more on from the IESO and likely APPrO as well.

So ultimately, Hydro One, while we want what is best for our customers, we're not in a position to determine what rate would yield the ideal outcome, which is why we defer to the IESO's expertise and responsibility to advise on the market implications of the ETS rate and on the OEB's expertise and responsibility to set a rate that appropriately balances the competing interests that I mentioned before.

Next slide, please, Eloise.

So in order to help the Panel in its decision-making and in response to the OEB's decision of Hydro One's last custom IR application, Hydro One has engaged two experts to provide studies to assist in the OEB's work and has also coordinated with the OEB.

The first study completed by Elenchus provides great insight into what a rate would look like if it was set based solely on a cost-based approach using cost-allocation principles, and the study provided by Elenchus, which they will discuss further, builds on the 2014 report.  It considers allocation of shared network costs to exporters, considers that exporters do not receive the same priority access as domestic service, and also considers the OEB's approach to allocating common costs in the distribution pole attachment decision.

Additionally, we engaged CRA to update its jurisdictional review to talk about current ETS rates, the rationale behind those rates, and how market implications were considered by those jurisdictions in setting ETS rates.

Hydro One also coordinated with the IESO to provide the report which it will discuss further on the impact to Ontario's market of changes in the ETS rate.

And so as I noted, you will hear more details on all of these reports in future presentations.  So that concludes the points we wanted to highlight, and I am happy to take any questions that you may have.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Mr. Vetsis.  You answered some of my questions through it, but I may have some follow-ups, but I will open it up to Mr. Sardana first to see if he has some follow-up questions.  Oh, and I should say just before we start, we're going to keep this informal, so, you know, we're not going to necessarily go completely in order.  If we want to follow up on each other's questions we will do so.  So just wanted to forewarn you that we will be doing that.  Mr. Sardana, thank you.
Questions by the Board:


MR. SARDANA:  Thanks, Ms. Anderson.  Mr. Vetsis, one question on slide 6 -- this is probably more in the realm of administration, and perhaps even better addressed to the IESO.

But slide 6 says, you know, chapter 10, section 4 of the Market Rules requires that the IESO collect charges for ETS, et cetera.

If we were to set the ETS rate to zero, I guess that would lead to some market rule amendments.  Is that your understanding?  And again, you know, it may be better addressed from the IESO side.

MR. VETSIS:  I think, Mr. Sardana, certainly I would welcome the IESO's view in this matter and maybe Mr. Myers as well, as he is familiar with those Market Rules.

However, I think the mark rule is worded in such a way that the IESO must collect the rate that is approved by the OEB.  So from my take, that would be if you were to approve a rate of zero on the tariff, then that would mean that they would collect zero.

However, Mr. Myers, I am happy to -- as a qualified lawyer, I'm not sure if you have any additional views that might contradict that.

MR. MYERS:  I think that's right.  The only point I want to add is that as you will see in that fourth bullet, and I believe this is taken from the language directly from the Market Rules, the OEB's responsibility is to set that ETS rate, if any.  So the "if any" contemplates the possibility of zero.

MR. SARDANA:  Fair enough.  The second question I had, again, Mr. Vetsis, you mentioned that ETS rates will have a neutral impact on Hydro One's transmission revenues.  Will there also be an impact on the distribution side of your business, because I don't know how this would impact the RTSRs.

Say the UTR pool changes because of the ETS rate, would that impact the distribution side as well?

MR. VETSIS:  I mean ultimately the RTSRs are a reflection of -- like it is just a distribution rate to recover the UTRs themselves.  So, yes, I think to the extent that the ETS impacts the UTR, there will -- there is a corresponding impact on the rate charged at the distribution side.

MR. SARDANA:  Okay, thank you.  Those are my questions.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  Mr. Zlahtic?

MR. ZLAHTIC:  I am having mouse problems.  I don't have any questions.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  It is off to me.  Let me have a look to see which of my questions are still relevant.

I guess the first one is -- I'm not on the JRAP proceeding, but my understanding is that the revenue forecast for the ETS -- which was 37.3 million for 2023 -- you haven't amended that.  And yes, the rate is still the same.

But have you looked at whether there is anything that would amend the forecast that would affect that revenue, at all?  Have you updated that at all?

MR. VETSIS:  We haven't updated the forecast.  The way that's done at a high level, Ms. Anderson, is we basically take a rolling three-year average of the export transactions and multiply that by the rate that is in place.

I think the specifics of the revenue offset is something that could be addressed quite easily at the draft rate order stage of the JRAP, provided that the decision in this proceeding either gives specific guidance on the rate itself or a methodology we could provide, which could then implement through the specifics of the rate.

I don't know if that answers your question specifically.

MS. ANDERSON:  I would say the question is perhaps, is there anything that would lead you to think that that revenue forecast would have materially changed from that forecast from last August?

MR. VETSIS:  On materially, no, there is nothing that would cause me to think that.

However, I think during one of the breaks, I will see if somebody on our rates team could update the rolling three-year average to see if there is a material change and get back to you.

Subject to that check, I don't think so.  But we will let you know if that is not the case by the end of the day.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  It is my understanding you have a variance account related to it.  Is that correct?

MR. VETSIS:  Yes, that is correct.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay, thank you.  There is an undertaking, and I think it is JT1.3, in which you are going to -- you are providing an explanation of the flow from the TRCA account.

And so you did answer one of my questions, which was no payments of that flow through the transmission business.

But is it correct that some of that TRCA would flow through the distribution business as a market participant?

MR. VETSIS:  I mean, it would flow through as a pass-through cost.  So I will give you sort of the high level summary and you can review the detailed answer when it comes.

Ultimately, you know, these charges, this credit, it is an IESO charge code that appears on the IESO bill that the distributor receives.  And amounts from that charge code get placed into account 1580, and are used to offset amounts collected from the wholesale market service rate.

So, you know, at a high level, I’d say key takeaway is really these credits at the distribution level are used to offset wholesale market service costs for the customer.  They will not impact a distributor's revenue requirement.  They're just a pass-through cost.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  And that account 1580, the wholesale market service charge is a kilowatt-hour-based charge, is that correct?

MR. VETSIS:  That's correct, yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  Now, with that undertaking, you are showing how it flows through.  Are you showing how it flows through to different types of customers?  I’m particularly interested in does it flow through in a different way to perhaps a class A customer versus non-RPP class B versus the RPP customers, and is it -- is it a flow through, you know, in a different way?  Or the fact that it is flowing through the wholesale market, it kind of depends on how that wholesale market charge is cleared, is that correct?

I guess I am wondering in that undertaking, do you look at it from different types of customer's perspective?

MR. VETSIS:  I think right now we have a statement in there in terms of a high level how balances are allocated between the classes.  Perhaps Mr. Li, Clement, maybe if you are around, could you maybe give a little bit more colour to answer Ms. Anderson's question?

MR. LI:  Sure.

MS. ANDERSON:  Before you answer, I mean where the question is in my mind are is that we have -- we have an ETS that we know how it gets allocated.  We have the congestion rents and the transmission rights, and that ends up in the TRCA.

Do they flow through the customers in the same way to these different types of customers?  So and does your undertaking kind of go to how the money flows to these different types much customers?  That is kind of where the question is leading to.

MR. LI:  Okay.  It is Clement Li here from Hydro One.

At a high level, we do have -- we do talk about two types of customers when it comes to how it flows through.  Really it’s just between market participants and non-market participants.

So in terms of market participants, because they deal with the IESO directly, so the TRCA disbursement payment will appear directly on the IESO settlement statement.

So they get the benefit directly.  So it doesn't have to go through Hydro One at all in that case.  So if you are a market participant, you don't get it through us.

But when it comes to a regular customer, just like a residential customer like you and I, so we -- we will get it through as a pass-through.  So that goes to what Mr. Vetsis is talking about, the wholesale market service charge.

So when the -- when Hydro One disposes of that variance account, so we will eventually get the benefit through that disposition of the variance account.

When it comes to class A and class B, we -- in the undertaking we did not get into that kind of detail.  When it comes to non-RPP, RPP again, we did not get into that kind of detail, but I don't think it makes any difference between RPP and non-RPP.

But I really have to think through it subject to check, but I don't think it makes any difference.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  So really the fundamental question is we're trying to balance an ETS versus the congestion rents and the transmission rights.

The comment is it flows through to ratepayers, and we're hearing it flows through to ratepayers.  The question is do they flow through to the ratepayers in the same way, or are there some differences to who gets those amounts.

I think that is something we want to get our head around.  Is there a material difference in how that would flow through?

So is there anything in any of our undertakings that would give us that information?  And if not, we may want to ask you to turn your mind to that.

MR. LI:  I think in the undertaking -- and maybe we're not filing until later on today, so if that is the key question that you have, I think we can go back and think about those -- the question that you asked and, if possible, try to come up with some answers to the questions that you have --


MS. ANDERSON:  Okay, thank you.  And with --


MR. LI:  -- in an undertaking.

MS. ANDERSON:  Yeah, thank you.  That would be wonderful, if it could be done within that undertaking, but I don't want to hold up the filing of those undertakings, because I know people will be looking forward to them.  But I think it is an important element that we really want to get our heads around, is do these two different types of payments flow through to different types of customers in a different way, if I could summarize it in that way.

MR. LI:  Yes.  It will be high-level just because of the timing --


MS. ANDERSON:  Sure, even that --


MR. LI:  Yes --


MS. ANDERSON:  -- that would be helpful.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Sorry, Ms. Anderson, is it okay if I jump in?

MS. ANDERSON:  Please do.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  I am interested in this too, and can I make a suggestion?  And I am just tossing it out.  You know, you are targeting getting Undertaking JT1.3 done by the end of today, and, you know, that is great.

What I would like to see is, you take that undertaking with the bolt-on question that Ms. Anderson asked and you just update it at a later date and -- you know, the time frame is not today.  We are not asking for you to provide us that today, but if you could provide it sometime next week.

And Ms. Anderson, the reason I am saying that is, you are going to have a contextual answer to that undertaking, and then you will have a bolt-on that follows, in terms of following the money and how it impacts different ratepayers, and I think that is what we want, right?

MS. ANDERSON:  Correct.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  So, I don't know --


MS. ANDERSON:  So it sounds like that is an undertaking.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Well, yes, I guess it is.  It is take your undertaking and undertake to undertake to add more to it.

MS. ANDERSON:  To give us a little more information, yes.

[Laughter]

MS. ANDERSON:  Is that okay to frame that as an undertaking?

MR. VETSIS:  I think we're happy to step away, and ultimately we want to be helpful in this proceeding, so we will see how much we can do today, and if it needs a little bit of extra time, we will do the first ever double undertaking I have ever heard of, but we will figure out a way of doing that as well.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Well, I will give you my perspective.

MR. VETSIS:  Yes.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Please don't feel compelled to have our undertaking done by the end of today.  It is just not reasonable, and not even tomorrow, from my perspective, because Lynne, I won't be here tomorrow, but...

MS. ANDERSON:  We want you to do a good job with it.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Yes, yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  And so if you need a little extra time --


MR. ZLAHTIC:  Yeah, if it takes a bit of time to get it right, take your time.

MR. VETSIS:  Okay.  We appreciate that.  Thanks.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  I am just going to pop in here.  This is an informal session today, but just for the sake of being able to keep track of things, why don't we give this undertaking a new number of JP1.1.  Thanks.
UNDERTAKING NO. JP1.1:  TO APPEND TO JT1.3, FLOW-THROUGHS FROM TRCA ACCOUNT, AN EXAMPLE OF ALLOCATION TO DIFFERENT TYPES OF CUSTOMERS AND MARKET PARTICIPANTS

MS. ANDERSON:  Thanks, Mr. Sidlofsky.  Moving on to my questions.  So Mr. Vetsis, you have said that -- you deferred to our expertise at the OEB to balance things, and you defer to the expertise of the IESO on the market implications.  But does Hydro One have a view on, you know, that balancing, whether or not there should be an ETS and whether or not it should be underpinned by a cost-allocation exercise, even if, as you noted previously, it is not perfectly aligned but it is informed by a cost-allocation exercise?  Does Hydro One have a view on this, or are you leaving it to the others to balance?

MR. VETSIS:  I mean, I think ultimately the challenge we have, Ms. Anderson, is it is hard for us to know what ultimately the benefit is.  And I think you have probably heard from the IESO and even from Power Advisory as well the challenges that comes in estimating these amounts and the interplay between the two.

In terms of the challenging decision that you all have to do, I think, you know, it is -- I think there is a few instructive things out there, looking at the -- what's out there from other jurisdictions.  There might be a few follow-up questions you might have for CRA as well, but I think when it comes to the -- it does appear that other jurisdictions have some form of cost-based rate for the ETS.  I think we have seen evidence here that a combination of the two has yielded benefits for the sector.

At the current levels, you know, we have an approach here with congestion pricing which looks at availability on the interties.  There is corollaries in other jurisdictions at LMP.  So I think certainly when you look at other jurisdictions it does seem that the structure is to have the two functions together.

I struggle to tell you on the specific amount of the cost-based rate, but I think through the Elenchus study you can see what the magnitude is of the change if you go purely on a cost-allocation basis, and the change would be quite significant.

MS. ANDERSON:  All right.  Thank you.

I just want to get Hydro One's views on something that was in the Power Advisory report, and it was actually page 17 of 78 in the PDF, and it talks to the fact that exports utilize the excess capacity -- here is the quote:

"Exports have utilized the excess capacity in the transmission system to ship surplus or low marginal cost energy to neighbouring jurisdictions.  This ensures transmission assets are being used when the system has been overbuilt."

So it is a release valve, they call it, to better utilize the transmission system.

Does Hydro One have any comments about the extent to which exports better utilize your transmission system?

MR. VETSIS:  It's not -- certainly not something that we have quantified, Ms. Anderson.  I think -- I mean, you could also make the argument that exports also make greater use of the committed generation resources that we have in the province, and I think when I look at the Power Advisory report, they really -- they talk about the fixed-cost nature of our generation supply.

And so, you know, I could also look at it as exports providing a way of using that capacity more efficiently from a transmission perspective.  Like I say, I don't know if that is something that we have necessarily quantified.  Certainly to the extent that the assets are available and can be utilized, your preference is always that they can meet the ratepayer requirements as greatly as possible.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay, thank you.  Those were my questions.  So I am kind of feeling -- unless anyone needs an urgent break, but I am kind of feeling like we could like to keep moving on.  It feels like we've kind of just got started.  So would Elenchus be available to start now?

MR. BLAIR:  Yes, I can start now, yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  There he is, Mr. Blair.  Yes, sorry, you were thinking you were going after the break, so I just wanted to make sure you were set.  So carry on.

MR. BLAIR:  Okay.  Heloise, do you want to share the presentation?

MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  It should be up on the screen now.
HYDRO ONE NETWORKS – PANEL 2

Andrew Blair
Presentation by Mr. Blair:


MR. BLAIR:  Yes, it is.  Great.  Good morning, Panel.  I am Andrew Blair with Elenchus.

I will take you through -- go to the next slide.  So I am going to take you through Elenchus's involvement with the ETS, beginning with the 2015-2016 transmission revenue-requirement proceeding and the methodology proposed at that time, going to explain the cost-allocation principles, OEB decisions, and characteristics of the export class that guided us in deriving the cost-allocation methodology.

I will explain the three scenarios that are included in our study which consider different extents to which exports should be allocated shared network costs.

Then I will briefly discuss a few smaller changes to the methodology, and conclude my remarks.

Next slide.

First, just to clarify our role in this proceeding, Hydro One retained Elenchus to identify cost-based methodologies for allocating shared network asset-related costs among domestic and export classes, which includes different scenarios that take into consideration the fact that exporters do not receive the same priority access as domestic service.

Next slide.  Elenchus was originally retained in 2014 to develop a cost based methodology to establish ETS rates.  The OEB directed Hydro One to undertake the study in a prior transmission decision.

Elenchus produced a report which is described as the May 2014 methodology or 2014 report.

Go to the next slide.

In that 2014 report, Elenchus developed a methodology to allocate Hydro One's transmission revenue requirement between domestic and export rate classes.  The models we used were based on the OEB's cost allocation model for electricity distributors, and followed the three traditional steps of functionalization, classification and allocation.

So this is a list of functions that are relevant to the network rate pool.  These functions are consistent with what is used in Hydro One transmission’s cost allocation to rate pools.

The functions are subdivided into three categories, dedicated to domestic, dedicated to interconnect, and shared.

Hydro One and other transmitters allocate their costs into three rate pools, network, line connection, and transformation section, and those are the rate pools that are used to set the three tariff rates.

The line connection and transformation connection are considered direct to domestic.  So when we're talking about shared costs between domestic and export, we're only talking about costs in the network rate pool.

Next slide.  Next step is classification which, in this case, all costs are treated as demand related.  This is typical for allocating transmission costs.

The allocation is mostly straightforward.  Costs that are dedicated to domestic were allocated fully to domestic class.

Costs that are dedicated to interconnect were allocated fully to the export class.

And the allocation of shared costs differed based on what the cost was in asset related costs or an OM&A expense.  Shared asset related costs were allocated fully to domestic class, and shared OM&A was allocated to both classes, based on a net fixed asset allocator which was underpinned by a 12 CP allocator.

In other words, first the assets, shared assets were allocated between domestic and export, based on relative peak demands.  Then OM&A was allocated on the same basis as all assets were allocated, and asset related costs such as depreciation, return on debt, and return on equity were fully allocated to domestic class.

So the export class and the resulting ETS rates in that study include only OM&A costs.

Next slide.

The rate at the time was two dollars a megawatt-hour; Elenchus's report recommended a ETS rate of 1.70 per megawatt-hour.  In settlement, the parties agreed to an ETS rate of $1.85 per megawatt-hour, so right down the middle.

Since the recent settlement, parties noted in the settlement agreement that 2014 methodology remained untested, and the and parties did not necessarily agree with the methodology.

The Board approved that settlement agreement and the $1.85 ETS rate is still in place today.

Next slide.

The rate remained in place for the next couple of Hydro One transmission cases, and Elenchus was involved in those.  But in the most recent decision on Hydro One's 2020-2022 custom IR, the OEB had some comments on the ETS and directed Hydro One to undertake a new study.

I am going to read a couple of excerpts from that decision because they explain what we were directed to do, and they help inform our approach here.

So shared network facilities have been paid for by domestic customers.
"The OEB has determined that the use of shared network facilities by exporters needs to be considered in setting the ETS rates.  The OEB does see some similarity with the rate established by attachments to distribution poles by third parties such as telecommunications and cable companies.
     As noted by SEC, for pole attachments, the OEB adopted a hybrid methodology to allocate common costs.  The OEB has insufficient information to conclude what the appropriate allocation of common network costs should be for exporters.  This needs to take into consideration that while exporters make use of the network system, Hydro One does not plan its system for the benefit of exporters.
     However, at the oral hearing Hydro One testified that once scheduled, with the exception of an emergency or supply issue, exporters are treated as firm as domestic load."

And next slide.

The decision goes on to say:
"Hydro One supported intervenor arguments that a cost allocation methodology that includes the allocation of shared network costs to exporters should be provided in Hydro One's next transmission rebasing application.  The OEB agrees.  This study should include different scenarios to take into consideration the fact that exporters do not receive the same priority access as domestic service until they are scheduled.  The OEB agrees with the OEB Panel for the ETS decision that export service should continue to be viewed as a separate class.  This study should be filed with Hydro One's next transmission rebasing application."

Next slide.  All that context leads to our study, which we will call the 2021 report.

The 2021 report provides three scenarios to allocate shared network costs to the export class.  In devising the methodology, Elenchus considered direction from the OEB as I just referenced in the 2020, 2022 decision.

The OEB report on pole attachment charges, which was cited in that decision, a jurisdictional review of cost-allocation methodologies, the IESO's treatment of exports and actual export service curtailment in recent years.

Next slide.

Of course, our work also considered cost allocation principles and particularly the concept of cost causality.  The 2014 methodology was based on the strict definition of cost causality that treated the export class as interruptible.

The perspective was that the transmission system was designed to serve a domestic market, so no shared asset costs were allocated to the export class.

Now, considering the OEB decision I read a minute ago and the pole attachment decision, we are also considering the value either obtained from leveraging the seller network in addition to pure costs.

We considered this aligned with the no free riders principle, which is often used as a principle in cost allocation.

We note that the FERC's order 1000 dealing with transmission cost allocation states that costs should be allocated in a way that is roughly commensurate with benefits as their first cost allocation principle.  And we also note that the know the Régie in Quebec has a long-standing, no-free-service guiding principle for cost allocation and rate design.

Next slide.  We also looked at the characteristics of the export class.  The IESO considers exports to be curtailable rather than interruptible.  We asked the IESO to give us a sense of the extent of export curtailments, and they informed us that in the top five peak hours in each of the past five years, exports were curtailed in only eleven of those 25 hours.  And the eleven hours in which there were curtailments, only ten percent of scheduled exports were curtailed.

This indicates to us that while exports don't receive the same access as domestic, they have access that is more than a typical interruptible customer.

Next slide.

To allocate cost, Elenchus continues to recommend using peak demand, specifically the 12 coincident peak or 12 CP allocator -- and I will clarify what that means in the next slide.

Our approach to this methodology is to apply this allocator to all shared network costs, including both OM&A and asset related costs.  We provide three scenarios based on adjustments to the 12 CP allocator.

First there is a fully allocated model based on an unadjusted 12 CP, there is a hybrid model in which export demands are adjusted down by fifty percent, and there is a scenario we describe as the curtailment model which has export demands adjusted down by 20 percent.

Next slide, please.

I will briefly explain how the 12 CP and adjusted CPs are calculated.  In the first table, we have actual system peaks in each month in 2020.  That is the total megawatt demand and the highest demand hour for each month.

This is based on publicly available data from the IESO's website.

Then the rate we have domestic classes demands in those same peak hours and export class demands in those peak hours.  We take the sum of the 12 months for each class and use those figures in the second table.

The fully allocated scenario does not adjust any volumes.  You can see the domestic class demands are about 89.3 percent of total system demands. Export class demands are about 10.7 percent of total system demands.

In the fully allocated scenario, we would then allocate 89.3 percent of costs to domestic class and 10.7 percent to the export class.  In the hybrid model, discounts are export -- hybrid model discounts export volumes by 50 percent with no change in domestic volumes.  In this scenario, it is 94.4 percent domestic and 5.6 percent export.

The curtailment model discounts export volumes by 20 percent, again with no changes to domestic volumes.

Our approach provides three ETS rates, and each rate is based on one of these three allocators.

Next slide, please.

In the fully allocated scenario with no adjustments, conceptually it is does not specifically take into account that export class has a lower priority access, although to the extent that exports are curtailed in peak times, it is somewhat reflected in the actual demand figures.

The hybrid model with a 50 percent reduction in export volumes provides a lower allocation recognizing to a greater extent that exports don't receive the same priority access.  There is no calculation behind the 50 percent figure, it is for a middle ground which, in our view, is aligned with the pole attachment hybrid methodology cited in the OEB's direction to undertake this study.

The curtailment model provides a smaller discount to export volumes and introduces some proportionality to the methodology.  Exports have been curtailed at approximately 20 percent of hours in recent years, so we applied a 20 percent reduction.

If hypothetically this methodology were to be adopted going forward, then there is a built-in adjustment that we allocate more costs to exports as the export class experiences fewer curtailments or fewer costs if exports are curtailed in more hours.

And moving to the next slide, we have the results of our study.  First, for reference, we have the current ETS rate of $1.85 per megawatt-hour, then we have the rate using the 2014 methodology, which has been updated with Hydro One's 2023 revenue requirement.  Then we have the rates resulting from the three scenarios.

On a fully allocated basis the rate is $6.07 per megawatt-hour, the hybrid 50 percent model results in a rate of 3.40 per megawatt-hour, and the curtailment 20 percent discount results in a rate of $5.03 per megawatt-hour.

Go to the next slide.  The report was prepared using only Hydro One's revenue requirement, and since there are other transmitters in Ontario with network pool assets our view is that a cost-based ETS rate would include the revenue requirements of those other transmitters.  This table shows the same rates as the previous slide scaled up for the network pool revenue requirements of those other transmitters, so there is a 7.7 percent increase in these rates relative to the rates in the previous slide.

So move on.  Next slide.  In addition to the main change of applying the 12 CP allocator to asset-related costs, we have a few smaller changes.

For allocating asset-related network costs to exports, we think the class should also receive a share of external revenues in the DVA balances that are associated with those assets.

Next, costs that are dedicated to intertie assets.  The interties were previously allocated fully to export.  But the domestic class benefits from interties through imports, so our revising methodology looks at the intertie 12 CP and allocates intertie costs on that basis.

Shared OM&A was allocated with a composite allocator that considered more than just shared assets, so we've refined that to shared OM&A allocated by only the shared assets.

And finally, the coincident peak demand data is based on one year of actual data, but the megawatt-hours uses the blend determinant, was based on a three-year rolling average.  The megawatt-hour billing determinant is now one year, so all load data is based on one system period.

Moving to the last slide.  In summary, the report describes methodologies considered by Elenchus to allocate shared network asset-related costs to the domestic and export classes based principally on cost causality.

Elenchus's view is that the extent to which the OEB should change ETS rates to reflect those network costs is a policy question for the OEB to determine relative to other considerations.

That is the end of the presentation, and I will take any questions.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Mr. Blair.

Mr. Sardana, do you have questions?

MR. SARDANA:  Just one question, Ms. Anderson, thank you.

Mr. Blair, just a point of clarification, and just so I can, you know, zero in on my understanding of this.

So the difference between the 6.54 for the, you know, export 12 CP and the 6.07 on the fully allocated 12 CP is because you put in the other transmission owners?

MR. BLAIR:  That's right.

MR. SARDANA:  Even though the other transmission owners don't own the interties, it is only Hydro One that owns the interties; is that right?

MR. BLAIR:  That's right.  It is the network pool, the allocation of the transmitters to the network pool.  So it is the network assets.  The shared network that we're now allocating to exports, it is also the shared network from other transmitters.

MR. SARDANA:  Okay, thank you.

MS. ANDERSON:  Mr. Zlahtic?
Questions by the Board:

MR. SARDANA:  I have a question.  Mr. Blair, can you flip back to slide 17.  I've got it up on my screen independently, so I got there maybe a little quicker.

MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  It should be up now.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.  I don't see it yet on the shared screen.  Oh, here we go.

So I am looking at the line, the 2014 report methodology, and it yields $1.67.  That $1.67, and following up on Mr. Sardana's question, that doesn't include any other shared network costs that Mr. Sardana just asked you about.  Does it?

MR. BLAIR:  Right.  That doesn't include any other transmitter costs.

MR. SARDANA:  Okay.  My apologies.  It is keeping all of these straight in my mind is difficult.

But if you take the 2014 report methodology, would it warrant updating that number for the other shared network costs?

MR. BLAIR:  Yes.  That could be provided as another reference to put it into context with the other table.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  I will tell you why I'm asking, is, you know, we have the $1.85 that is in place now, we have the $1.67 from the report, and then, you know, the rest of the numbers.  And then updating those numbers, for example, the 6.07 to 6.54, it would be really nice to have that table with all of those numbers updated so they all align.

Could you undertake to provide that to us, please?

MR. BLAIR:  Yes.  But we wouldn't update the approved ETS rate.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  No, of course not.  That is up to us.

[Laughter]

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Yes.  Sorry.  I am just pausing, because I got a feeling there is another question, and I am just formulating it in my mind.  Apologies for that.

Oh.  Ah.  When you update the $1.67, Hydro One gave a response in OEB number 7, and it showed the costs that were allocated to it, and --


UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER:  Hello?

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Yeah.  Hang on.  Sorry.  Let me just find it here.  Sorry, I am pulling up the responses.  I am pulling up the response to OEB 7.  OEB Staff 7.

MR. BLAIR:  I have it in front of me, but I'm not sure if it's --


MR. ZLAHTIC:  And I am scrambling to get there, because it is -- the PDF is huge, right?

MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  I should be able to get it up on the screen.  Sorry.  So that is OEB 7?

MR. ZLAHTIC:  I believe so, yes.

MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  So that should be this one here.  It should be up on the screen now.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.  Hang on.  I just want to get there myself.  There is a table in the response.

MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  Yes.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  You are quicker than me.  Okay.  It is a race.  Here we go.  You beat me.

MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  Yes.  It is still because I am sharing the screen, so I should be fairly fast.  Is this it?  I can skip down to the next table as well.  Please let me know.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Yes, hang on a second.  Yes, please.  Sorry for this.  I should have been a bit better prepared.

MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  No problem.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  There.  There it is.  So Mr. Blair --


MR. BLAIR:  Yes.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  -- I am just trying to understand.  You know, as you updated from the 6.04 to 6.54, I am trying to understand how that $1.67 number could change.  And in this response, it is showing the allocation of the various dollars.  And I am --


MR. BLAIR:  Yes.  I think we would inflate this $1.67 by 7.7 percent increase that we applied to the other rates.  So it would be 7.7 percent higher, not much higher.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.  You know what?  That was the short answer.  Okay.  Because I am a bit of a numbers nerd, I would really like the numbers in that table updated to reflect the 7.7 percent increase.  I just want to see how all the dollars flow.

MR. BLAIR:  Sure.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Does that make sense?

MR. BLAIR:  Yes.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Sorry, maybe the better question -- it may not make sense to you, but do you understand what I am asking for?

MR. BLAIR:  Yes.  I understand.  I can provide that.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.  Super.  Thank you so much.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  I'm just going to jump in there and make that Undertaking JP1.2.
UNDERTAKING NO. JP1.2:  TO UPDATE THE TABLE PROVIDED IN RESPONSE TO STAFF 7, PART B TO INCLUDE THE COST OF OTHER TRANSMITTERS.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Mr. Blair, just to help our reporter, if you could just describe what it is that you plan to provide.

MR. BLAIR:  Update the table provided in response to Staff 7, part B to include the cost of other transmitters.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Perfect.  Thanks very much.

MR. BLAIR:  Welcome.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  I am glad you said it, not me.  That was...

MS. ANDERSON:  Do you have any further questions?

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Oh, sorry.  That was it.

MS. ANDERSON:  That was it, okay.  So we're on to me.  Thanks, Mr. Blair, and thank you.  You answered one of my questions, which was the rationale behind the 50 percent factor and you said it was just kind of a middle ground.

Did you do sensitivity around, you know -- we know we have the 100 percent, we’ve got the percent, we’ve got the 50 percent.  Did you consider -- is there an answer that considers other percentages?

I actually tried to do a little bit of math to see if there is was any sort of linear correlation and of course, there is not; there’s other factors.  Is there an answer that has other percentages?

MR. BLAIR:  JT2.3 will have an 80 percent discount as well.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  So, yes, so 80 percent on -- your evidence showed 80 percent, so this would be like a discount to 20 percent, is that what you are saying?

MR. BLAIR:  Yes, yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  JT?

MR. BLAIR:  2.3.

MS. ANDERSON:  2.3.  Is that a complicated calculation to change that percentage?

MR. BLAIR:  No.  It is just putting 80 percent reduction instead of the 20 percent reduction from the other model.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay, thank you.  Thank you for explaining your engagement and, in particular, you noted that in our previous decision, the OEB determined that the use of shared network facilities by exporters needs to be considered in setting the ETS rates and so that is what you did in your options.

So here's the more difficult question.  If the OEB hadn't said that, would Elenchus have proposed an allocation of these network facilities, you as the expert here in allocations?

MR. BLAIR:  In the 2014 report, we did includes a scenario that did allocate costs based -- asset costs in addition to OM&A, and I think we probably would have included more scenarios that included that, more than just the one scenario.  It may be a base scenario would have included that.  We would have included multiple scenarios again, but it would have -- it would have been a bit more on the side of including asset related costs, based on what we have seen in other jurisdictions.  That free rider principle we have been thinking about more, an evolution in thinking since 2014 on top of the OEB decision.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay, thank you.  You referred to the free rider principle, and that was my last question.

You referred to it.  Can you explain what you mean by the free rider principle?

MR. BLAIR:  Yes.  The free rider is an economic concept of someone who derives benefits, but doesn't pay for the costs associated with those benefits.

So the free rider principle is anyone getting sort of free service, is anyone not paying for something they share.  In the interruptibles, it is a bit of an issue.  There is a complicated part there because when the system is first built, you can build it without the interruptible customer in mind and you actually interrupt them.

Maybe they don't actually contribute to demand-related costs.  However -- sorry, I lost my train of thought.

MS. ANDERSON:  That's okay.  You referred to it as a cost allocation principle, and I just wanted to make sure
-- we hear the term "free ridership" and it is often with respect to maybe conservation programs.  But you're referring to it as a cost allocation principle.  I just wanted to make sure we had it clear what you meant by that.

MR. BLAIR:  It is the same of our definition of free rider as you would consider in that issue.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay, thank you.  Those were my questions.

So I think with that, we will take the break and I think -- I am looking at Ashley's schedule here.  Yes, 15 minutes.  So we will be back at ten after 11.
--- Recess taken at 10:55 a.m.
--- On resuming at 11:14 a.m.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  We are back.

And just before we get going with CRA and Mr. DesLauriers, Mr. Sidlofsky, you had raised the fact that we should get some exhibit number on the decks that have been provided so they're on the record?

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  We should.  So I will give Exhibit No. KP1.1 to the Hydro One presentation, KP1.2 to the Elenchus presentation, and I am about to give No. KP1.3 to the Charles River Associates presentation.
EXHIBIT NO. KP1.1:  HYDRO ONE PRESENTATION.
EXHIBIT NO. KP1.2:  ELENCHUS PRESENTATION.
EXHIBIT NO. KP1.3:  CHARLES RIVER ASSOCIATES PRESENTATION.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  And I will give the IESO and APPrO a heads-up that I will be assigning exhibit numbers to your presentation decks as well.  Thanks.

MS. ANDERSON:  Great.  Thank you.  So Mr. DesLauriers, I see you there, and I assume you have someone to run your presentation, and we will turn it over to you.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Good morning, thank you.  And Heloise, if I can ask you to share your screen and the presentation, we will walk through it.

MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  Yes.  It's not showing up even though I have it right open.  One moment, please.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  I can share mine as well if it's easier.

MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  What I will do is I'll share my screen, and that will work.  I am not sure why that PDF is not showing.  So that will be fine.  Here we are.  There we are.  You should see it there.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  I don't see it, unfortunately.  This is --


MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  You should see it in a moment.  If you go --


MR. DesLAURIERS:  Okay.  It just arrived down --


MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  Yes.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  -- and I've lost it.  It must have taken a bit to transmit down the wires.

MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  Okay.  Sorry about that.  Here it is.
HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC. - PANEL 3

David DesLauriers

Presentation by Mr. DesLauriers:

MR. DesLAURIERS:  No worries.

Good morning, everybody.  My name is David DesLauriers.  I'm the vice-president in Charles River Associates' energy practice, and I was the principal author of the export transmission rate jurisdictional review study that was submitted in this proceeding.

If we could advance to the next slide, I will walk through the agenda.

Very quickly, the agenda is to -- today is to walk through the scope of work and review our findings, discuss our methodology, discuss some of the implications of export rate determination that we found from our jurisdictional review, and then we have a section that walks through some of what we saw as some of the predominant topics in the IRs that were submitted on our study, and we thought we would take a few moments to review those, and we have a series of appendices.  I won't necessarily walk through each deck, but it is just a reproduction of the rate results that we have provided in the study.

So that is what we will walk through today.

Yes.  Next slide, please.

Regarding our scope of work, CRA was retained back in 2012, you may recall, to conduct a jurisdictional review of ETS rates that were in place at that point in time.

The study identified a range of ETS tariffs both in U.S. and Canada, and discussed various aspects of those rates.  We understand that that study was part of the record that was used to inform the decision that came out of EB-2010-0002 in that proceeding.

Ten years later or so, in the most recent transmission rate application ending in 0082, but now is part of 0243, Hydro One was ordered by OEB to provide a 2012 jurisdictional review update.  And so our study that we're speaking about today was conducted in 2020, '21, but using 2020 rates that were effective at the time and available at the time to update the jurisdictional review that we had conducted in 2012.

So essentially, it was an update of the rates in place that were started in 2012.  We did add a few more jurisdictions that were not present in that original 2012 study, and we have included those in our updated report.

So we'll spend the next few slides just walking through again what our study methodology was, the jurisdictions we reviewed, what some of the results were.

So in this current slide, we're presenting the -- essentially, the statement of the results.  It's a summary of the 2020 export rates in each of the jurisdictions that we reviewed.  They are in Canadian dollars.  We used an exchange rate that was current in 2020 that of course is different than what was in place in 2012.

And it represents the results of each of the jurisdictions we reviewed.  What is not shown there is for British Columbia, we were asked to do that in an interrogatory response, and we provided that response, but it was not part of our original scope of work.

I think if we take a look back at the rates in table 1, 2020, relative to the rates that were displayed in 2012 study, what we see is that there really were no changes in the design of rates, and when I say design I mean whether a rate is applied on a capacity basis, with a denominator of a capacity-based metric megawatts, or on a volumetric energy basis applied on an MWH basis.

The rate levels, with the exception of PJM, have changed over the years, over ten years, and as we know, transmission systems, like any other electric system, is growing and living.  There are system expansions that increase costs.  There are the effect of inflation that hits rate base, that drives revenue requirement, and so what we see is a change in rate levels, primarily related to those two factors.  There's obviously also some differences in the exchange rates for those U.S. rates that we have restated on a Canadian basis.

We were asked to review the regulatory rationale to the extent that any evidence existed for how these rates were set in U.S. jurisdictions.  And what we found is that these rates really existed from a legacy period in place prior to the formal formation of the IESOs and the RTOs that are in place today.  They came out of the rates that were in place and the power pools that eventually evolved into the IESOs and RTOs that we know today in the United States and that were formed, you know, around the turn of the century.

They generally are all computed and derived on a similar basis with respect to the fact that they are cost-based.  In effect, they are the product of the revenue requirement of the grid over firm coincident peak demand, or megawatt-hour.

So if we were to step back and ask ourselves, is there a specific cost-allocation methodology applied, our response is:  Other than it is entirely cost-based, deriving from the revenue requirement, which of course is cost-based in and of itself, but there is no sort of explicit methodology to allocate a set of costs between export and domestic classes differently.  It is all, if you will, collected, costed, on a grid-wide basis.

Go to the next slide, Heloise, please.  Thank you.

Stepping back a bit just to discuss our methodology of how we approached the study.  You know, it had been ten years since the prior study about, and so we wanted to go back to each of the particular ISO regions both in U.S. and Canada and go back to the source and obtain the current tariffs and verify that the rates in place were on the tariffs and that the same service with reference to the particular rate that was being offered to provide the export service was continuing to be in place.  We did that.

We've reviewed the tariff and applicable rates and services, and where we had questions, in terms of interpreting how a tariff worked or whether we found the correct tariff that would be effective for export transactions, we conducted telephonic conversations with ISO staff, the appropriate staff at each of the ISOs.

We also did some extensive research back to the period when the ISOs were formed and the OATTS were authorized and approved by FERC around the period of 2000, late '90s, to see if there was any discussion of regulatory rationale as to why this approach had been taken to compute export rates, and we found that there really wasn't any, that they really were a legacy sort of adoption from rates that were in place on the power pools, and there was no real activity to re-cost those rates, or to reprice them, or to set them on any other basis than what had already been in place.

If we can move on to the next slide.

So really just recapping, but providing a little more detail on what is sort of, at least in the U.S. jurisdiction and I believe in most Canadian as well, is what do we mean by an annual transmission revenue requirement.

On the prior slide or two, I mentioned that a revenue requirement is really effectively a build up of various cost components.

So in effect, it is cost based in that regard, and the major components to ATRR are return on plant, operating and maintenance, depreciation, taxes, and then we've just identified here sort of sub components.  But those are principally the major components of a revenue requirement.

And so effectively, what we sue is that we have in the numerator for these rate terminations, the collective, if you will, ATRR of the transmission owners providing service in that region, divided by the megawatt basis, typically a 12 coincident peak for those rates that are set on a demand basis.

We do note that California, New York and Alberta use a MWh-based denominator as opposed to a peak-based or volumetric-based denominator in those jurisdictions.  But effectively, the math is the same, and the kind of costs that are entered into the numerator are the same.

If we could advance to the next slide, please.

So moving on now to specifically discuss some of the topics that we had identified as being of interest by the OEB and other intervenors regarding our study.

The first topic we want to address is really the issue of cost allocation, so the topic of cost basis versus cost allocation.

And the clarification that we made in a number of responses in our IRs is that when we look at the U.S. jurisdictions and even the Canadian jurisdictions that we reviewed as well, that, you know, we do say in our approach, in our viewpoint and based upon our experience with costs and rate determination in regulated settings, that these rates are cost-based.

They're cost-based in the sense that they derive from a revenue requirement which, in and of itself, is a summation, if you will, of individual cost components.

They're used to derive point-to-point service rates that are applied to export transactions.  Any rationale that was applied in designing these rates and using that approach was rooted in the sort of fundamental series of orders that FERC had issued, again around the end of the last century, around 2000, when it was actively seeking to open up transmission markets.

So the principles really under order 888 -- and I apologize for that typo; it is 888 -- 889, 890 and there is also 2000, but essentially the principles are that transmission rates on grids should be set on a non-discriminatory basis.  Customers with like cost profiles should receive like rate treatment.

Rates need to be set on a non-discriminatory basis, so any market participants seeking access to the transmission grid should have it.  And there is also the contemplation of giving the transmission owners a reasonable opportunity to recover costs which, of course, implies also a recovery of return on equity.

Advance to the next slide.

There was a series of IRs that asked if CRA in the conduct of its report had identified any ratemaking considerations for export rates that considers specific market outcomes.

And we have identified the responses here on the page, OEB 19 and OEB Staff 27 and VECC 6.1.

And our finding is that if we consider the question of market outcomes to be some sort of question such as: How do we set an export rate so that we either stimulate more export activity versus what is occurring today, or we make transactions flow more easily between points, or we discourage export transactions because of a variety of conditions, possibly a lack of excess supply or, you know, lack of capacity on interties.

Any of those kinds of questions that we would be considering would be considered in our view a market outcome consideration, and we really didn't see any evidence of that.  The rates are purely set on a cost basis and the rates are, in effect, what they are based upon that mathematical application.

A simplification.  Obviously there is review of what goes into the revenue requirement and how that revenue requirement is calculated and stated.  But if we, you know, are asked to consider whether any particular rate is set on a specific market outcome consideration, we don't see that.

Advance to the next slide.

Now, we had discussion during the technical hearing on congestion pricing, and we also received a number of interrogatory responses on congestion pricing, based upon our study.

And, you know, of course our study -- the remit of our study was not to look specifically at congestion pricing.  We were looking at export transaction rates.

However, you know, we felt during the course of the conduct of the proceeding and the evidence that was being produced that there was, you know, sufficient evidence for us to respond selectively to questions on ICP based upon our understanding of what was entered into evidence in the proceeding, and then our understanding of how it is handled, congestion is handled in U.S. markets.

And so with regards to congestion pricing, what we found is that congestion and the costs of congestion are essentially handled through the -- through the market interaction and the product of the locational market price that comes out of the auction-based energy markets in the U.S.

So the L in locational market price represents congestion pricing, if we think of congestion being the inability to dispatch lower cost resources in one region to get power to another region because of a transmission constraint.

Because of that constraint, higher costs resources need to be used instead because of that bottleneck and that is sort of the fundamental theory of LMP.

So it is really a product of pricing out of the energy market than it is, per se, a charge that is assessed on the transmission part of the transaction.  So we just make that note as to locational marginal prices in our interrogatory responses.

We did find during the course of our work, as well, that there is a transmission usage charge that is in the New York ISO tariff, that when we read the tariff language is to recover marginal congestion costs.  We're not really aware of the magnitude of the revenues coming from that charge relative to the transmission service charge, which is in place effectively to recover the costs of the revenue requirement of the grid as opposed to congestion.

Next slide, please, Heloise.

So I will go quickly through the other slides by jurisdiction.  It is really just a condensation and replay of what we have in our report, but there are a few, you know, differences between some of the jurisdictions that are interesting to note.

We can start within PJM.  PJM has a firm and non-firm point to point service rate.  It is what is sort of referred to as border rate in some of the correspondence and some of the orders that we have seen.

There is a memorandum of understanding in place, and this was a discussion topic also in the technical hearing, that transactions between PJM and the mid continent operator, MISO, both import and export, are subject to a memorandum of understanding whereby those transactions flow between the borders without having an export transaction-related or export transmission-transaction related charge assessed.  So effectively, they have, you know, no transaction costs for transmission for transfers between that border.

The rate has not changed significantly since 2012.  It continues to be offered on Schedule 7, long-term and short term and their tariff, nor has the design of the rate changed.  The level really even hasn't changed much at all either.

If we can move on to the next slide.

In New England, the export service is provided under what is called a through-and-out rate, and again is -- it is sort of a construct from the NEPOOL days, New England Power Pool, which was the power pool in place in New England prior to the ISO New England.  NEPOOL obviously still exists and works with ISO New England parallel, but it is a construct from the pre-ISO New England days.

There are no difference in pricing between firm and non-firm, that ISO doesn't really distinguish for purposes of exports a firm or non-firm basis.  Obviously all exports in all of these jurisdictions are curtailable to the extent that domestic reliability needs need to be protected.

Similar to what we saw between PJM and MISO, there is a memorandum of understanding for the transfer of power between ISO New England and New York both on imports and exports.  Those transactions are levied without a transmission cost charge.

Schedule 7, long-term and short-term, point-to-point transmission service is the tariff reference for the rates that are charged for export transactions in New England.

If we can move on to the next page.

For New York ISO, similar to New England in the respect that the rates that are charged come out of the New York power pool days that were -- that was solely in place prior to the formation of New York ISO.

These rates, unlike New York -- sorry, unlike New England and PJM and MISO, these rates are set on an energy basis, NWH basis, and the rates are set by zone in New York rather than having a single grid-wide rate that represents the collective revenue requirements of all of the TOs.  New York applies the rate on a zonal basis, which, therefore, is more specific and recovers costs more specific to those particular transmission owners that are involved in that particular power withdrawal and injection sequence that happens in New York.

So there is a little bit of a difference in the fact that the rates are applied zonally rather than grid-wise, but essentially it is the same mathematics of revenue requirement over billing units, billing determinants.

We see that New York's schedule is schedule 7, firm point-to-point transmission service for these rates, for these transactions.

And for mid-continent ISO essentially it is the same.  There is a reciprocal arrangement between PJM and MISO.  This joint agreement applies to wheel-through transactions.  We have again schedule 7 and 8, firm and non-firm point-to-point service.  The rates for firm and non-firm are effectively the same.  Identical.

Move on to the next slide.

And SPP -- now, this is a jurisdiction that we added since 2012, and what we found is that there is a specific schedule 11 called through-and-out service.  It is the sum of the zonal ATRRs divided by 12 CP firm demand.  It is offered again on a firm and a non-firm basis, but priced identically.

We have a schedule 11 through-and-out zonal rate reference in the SPPO, for those that wish to research that.

So again, not anything dramatically different than what we have seen in the other jurisdictions in the United States so far, in terms of how that rate is determined.  There are some differences in whether it is a grid-wide single rate or whether it is a zonal rate, some differences in whether it is assessed on a megawatt bill-determinant basis, capacity basis, or a volumetric energy, NWH basis.

If we can move on.  California ISO, a few distinguishing features.  They have what is called a high-voltage transmission access charge, or HV-TAC, and it is calculated on a grid-wise basis now and billed using energy-based billing determinants.

There was -- originally when California ISO was first formed it was not a grid-wide rate.  It was more akin to what we see in New York today, which is a zonal rate.  So that clusters of transmission owners, revenue requirements were determined for applying the rate base upon the zone the transaction took place out of.

And since then, they've moved to bundling all of those revenue requirements together into a single grid-wide HV-TAC high-voltage transmission access charge.

Interesting to note there is an imbalance market that's been in place that is administered by California ISO, and for the purposes of that -- those market interactions, export charges that would ordinarily be assessed between balancing authorities and regions are waived but, as we have noted in one of our responses in the IRs, really the imbalance market in California serves a different purpose than I think what typically we see for export transactions, that market is really designed more for reliability and balancing, as opposed to other, you know, drivers of export transactions, whether that be pricing of supply differences between regions or financial transactions, et cetera.

If we can move on.

TransEnergy, Hydro-Québec, again, similar methodology, in terms of using a revenue requirement.  I would say the one distinguishing feature about that is there is the application or the ability to discount rates on the transaction cost for transactions based upon the discretion of the market operator.

And so that is maybe one distinguishing feature that we noted relative to the others that were in the study.

If we can move on.

And the Alberta ESO offers two rates.  There is a merchant intertie and then an XOS rate.  I used to know what XOS stood for, and if you allow me to go to my notes, I can find that.  I think it is a supply service.  I can get -- there we are.

Export opportunity service is what XOS stands for.  But essentially, those are the two rates that are offered for transactions -- export transactions in Alberta.

They're determined on an energy basis.  They are derivatives of the DTS, rate which is the domestic transmission service rate.  And so although, you know, there is a cost basis to it, in the sense that it is derived from DTS, which is a cost-based rate in and of itself, we don't see that the determination of both the opportunity service and the merchant service rates are representative of a particular cost-allocation methodology that we would typically see in the case of, for instance, in distribution rate-setting.

If we could move on.  Next slide.

MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  It should be up now.  British Columbia.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Yes.  Thank you.

We conducted a study on British Columbia in response to an interrogatory response that we received.  And again, we didn't really note any significant difference in how those rates were derived on a cost-based revenue-requirement basis.

We did note that there are -- there are -- there's the waiving of transaction costs for transfers between particular systems, for instance between B.C. Hydro and Fortis B.C., and so we see that that's another example where two neighbouring territories have decided to waive for various reasons the transaction costs for imports and exports between those two regions.

We have the right reference at the bottom there.

If we can move to the next slide.

And we just display here the results of the review that we -- of the rates we were able to find in British Columbia that are currently effective.  I just note that that is in place here, and that this work was provided in response to Energy Probe's interrogatory 9.

If we can move on.  So appendix 2, I know that we've spent a while looking at the slides and methodology and on the concepts that were introduced in interrogatories, so I won't really walk through each of these slides slide by slide or number by number.

But essentially to refer all of this back to our report that we have provided all of the currently effective rates for export transactions in these jurisdictions on a number of various bases, in their native tariffs, meaning as they exist on the tariff and their native currency, in their native format.

We've restated them in Canadian currency.  We have restated them all on an energy basis using a 100 percent load factor basis for comparability between what are originally demand based rates to energy rates and Ontario's rate obviously is energy.  So we thought that would be, could be helpful.

And that is all contained in our report.  We provided various other versions of these rates in responses to interrogatories that are in the record.  So unless there are any particular questions, I will move on to the rate adders.

As part of our study, we also looked at the rate adders that were in place and as we know in U.S. jurisdictions and in Canadian as well as in Ontario, there are a number of adders that are added to transactions that are not for, per se, the recovery of grid-wide revenue requirement costs, but for other costs typically going for balancing, system maintenance, market administration, et cetera.

And so we tabulated, we researched and tabulated these adders and they are reported in the series of charts in our appendix for each of the regions.  And invite everyone to review them and ask questions, as you have.  I would say that they are fairly representative of what is in place in Ontario for some of the transactions.

Although we haven't studied the Ontario adders closely, we did respond back with an interrogatory that restated rates both on an ETS plus an adder basis.

I believe that was in one of the OEB responses.  Maybe 33, subject to check.

And so I think that brings us to the end of our overview of our report, and -- unless are there other slides behind this, Heloise?  Or are we at the end?

MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  You're at the end.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  We are at the end.  So thank you, Everybody, for your attention.  I invite you to offer any questions.
Questions by the Board:

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Mr. DesLauriers.  Questions, Mr. Sardana?

MR. SARDANA:  Strangely, I have none.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  Mr. Zlahtic?

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Good morning, Mr. DesLauriers.  How are you?

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Good morning, Mr. Zlahtic.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  You are an excellent presenter, sir.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Thank you.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Can I take you back to slide 9?  There is a lot of material to cover, and the organization of your deck is impressive.  So it makes it easy for me to go back to what I want to ask you questions about, slide 9.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Can I go back to --


MS. APESTEGUY-REUX:  It will be up in a moment.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  I apologize.  I've got your deck up independently, so I am ready.  Let me know when you are ready.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  I'm ready.  Thank you, Heloise. I am also looking at it on my screen, so go right ahead.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Maybe for the benefit of others, right.

So from your study and looking at all of the jurisdictions you have looked at, is it safe to say that every jurisdiction you looked at has some cost based revenue requirement basis for setting rates?

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Yes.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  That would be correct?  Okay.

And in this slide, the thing that tweaked me to take you back to the slide is you talk about locational marginal price.

Let me just read the second bullet:
"CRA notes that in the U.S. jurisdiction studies, congestion related costs are recovered through energy market locational marginal prices," and it goes on, right.

In all of the jurisdictions that you looked at -- I apologize, I am not familiar with every jurisdiction in the United States -- but is locational marginal pricing prevalent in each jurisdiction?

MR. DesLAURIERS:  It is.  I mean, you know, it is.  It is a way to reflect locational differences in the provision of energy.

So our understanding is it is widely used and as I said, the L in locational is to represent differences in supply, energy, considering that we can't always get one electron from A to B on the path that we would like given transmission constraints.  So other electrons have to be chosen which have a different cost basis.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Right.  I think, I liked your characterization of L in your presentation which you said it is congestion pricing.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  It is the closest to congestion that we can find, other than what we see in TUC.

Now, keep in mind we didn't focus our report on congestion pricing, so we weren't, you know, necessarily looking for congestion tariffs.  But our understanding, from our familiarity with the U.S. markets is LMPs are widely used and that is principally where the cost of congestion is reflected in the transaction.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.  So in the jurisdictions that you examined, did you see anything that is akin to the IESO's ICP mechanism, which is intertie congestion payments?  Did you see anything like that?  Or is LMP the proxy for ICP in the United States?

MR. DesLAURIERS:  I would venture to say that LMP is the principal mechanism by which congestion costs are reflected in transactions in the United States.

We did not find any mechanism to recover specifically congestion costs in the way that ICP does in Ontario, which is a market-based/auction-based process or mechanism specific to each intertie, specific to the demand on that intertie at that hour.

What we do see in New York is another version of collecting congestion costs, but it is more of a tariffed charge as opposed to auction-based -- if that helps.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.  Just the last sentence, there is a tariff, but it is not auction-based like ICP is what you're saying, okay, good, thank you.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Right, right.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  I'm not done.  I'm sorry.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  We should have done a study on congestion costs as well as export transactions, I think.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  So your report was constrained to the direction that you had from your client.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  It raises good questions.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  But I am unencumbered, so that is the reason for the question.  Please don't misconstrue this as a criticism of your study.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Not at all.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  I have somebody with big expertise sitting here and it is -- I can't help myself.

You know, you may be aware of the IESO's market renewal program, and I think they're targeting to implement that in 2023.  That will be a question to have for Mr. Chapman.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Yes.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  But as part of that, the IESO is looking at going to locational marginal pricing. And I guess tapping your expertise, the question I would like to ask you -- you know, in Ontario we have an export transmission rate, right.  We have ICPs.  We have transmission auctions.  And we're going to have locational marginal pricing soon.

I mean, it just seems like a lot of stacking of congestion management mechanisms.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Hmm-hmm.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  I mean, in your view, does it make sense to have an ETS or an ICP if we're going to locational marginal pricing?

MR. DesLAURIERS:  It is a really difficult question.  And I am not an expert on ICP, so I am sure I am probably going to be corrected.

But what my understanding of ICP the way it operates from the Power Advisory report and the IESO report is that it's an auction-based mechanism to, if you will, auction off capacity that is available for export transactions at a particular intertie.

Clearly, if there was no capacity available at that intertie, there would be nothing to auction, correct?

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Correct.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  And so, therefore, there would be congestion, all else equal, if power was trying to move out of there.

And again, in my non-expert opinion of ICP, that is a different cost than saying, we can't move an electron from northern Ontario down to Toronto because we have -- we don't have enough transmission capacity in between to flow that electron.

So that's -- it is almost two different things, two different costs, if you will.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  And I haven't thought about it a lot, but I think that is one thing you might want to think about.  Are you -- are they identical costs that you are trying to duplicate with rates or not.  And it seems to me they may not be.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  But just getting back to your earlier answer, though, that you are not aware of any jurisdiction that you looked at that has a market-based clearing system like ICP, like we do in Ontario?

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Yes, yes.  You know, again, the LMP is a product of, you know, an energy market outcome, option-based energy market outcome, that considers constraints.

For instance, we know there is existing constraints between upper New York and New York City, and that's been something that the New York ISO and stakeholders have been working on a long time to alleviate so that less expensive power can flow down to New York, so that is an example of an LMP working, that, you know, it provides a price signal, if you will, or added transmission that relieves congestion and provides economic benefit.

In terms of something that is an auction-based approach that is accessible exclusively by exporters for export transactions, that seeks to provide a value of excess capacity at an intertie based upon an auction-based approach, I don't see that at all.  I don't see that in any of the jurisdictions that I have looked at, and that's -- you know, it's sort of one of the reasons why Ontario is so unique, is it not, from the other jurisdictions.  There are a lot of features to it that we don't see in the U.S.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  We consider ourselves special, sir.

[Laughter]

MR. ZLAHTIC:  But, no, I mean, it is unique and -- okay.  Well, thank you for that.  And I appreciate your explanation.  That was very clear.  Thank you so much.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  You're welcome.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  And I did get many of my questions answered, but just on that -- to follow on that last thought about Ontario versus other jurisdictions.

Do you have any just overall thoughts about what is different in Ontario from really all of the other jurisdictions that you were looking at?  Like, any just sort of overriding thoughts that come to mind?

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Well, it is really different, in the sense that -- and I'm not -- you know, there are other people in our practice that have their fingertips on these statistics, but, you know, in terms of baseload generation supply that sits native to Ontario or relative to other regions, where there is, you know, real economic arbitrage opportunities for accessing lower-cost power between regions, I don't know that that necessarily exists to that degree in some of the other regions, in terms of having one region with a great deal of baseload supply abutting another region that doesn't.

And so there is a lot of transactions, export transactions, that take place to, you know, simply provide markets with lower-cost power.  There is a transaction cost related to that.

And so, you know, I would say that, you know, a lot of what we saw in the interrogatories is, you know, is there a cost basis to the ETS rate and what are the market implications?

And maybe one of the things that we need to remind ourselves coming out of the report is that there are many factors that are considered by market participants when an export transaction takes place.  One of them is the cost of the transaction, but the other aspect -- and again, I'm not a market expert on export transactions in Ontario, but just viewing the evidence, it looks as if there are a lot of economic factors that are evaluated by exporters in these transactions.  Some of it obviously does include the ETS rate, and that does have a very really effect on the economic viability of any particular transaction.

So maybe a long way of answering that there are a lot of ways that Ontario is different.  Maybe one of them is the, you know, the type and the amount of baseload supply relative to other regions that could influence how it is different.

There's the presence of the ICP that is different, and that obviously adds to the cost of the transaction as well that isn't in place in the U.S.

So it is just -- you know, we very much wanted to sort of be able to identify something coming out of the U.S. that would be directly comparable to Ontario and instructive, and it was just very difficult to do that because of some of these really fundamental differences.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  Could we call up -- I think at the end you were on slide 25, which I think is your summary table.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Sure.

MS. ANDERSON:  It was also on slide 4, I think, but I think 25 was a bit bigger.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Which I can barely see.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  I was going to ask the same.

MS. ANDERSON:  How close do I get my nose to my screen here?

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Unless you want a close-up of me, we might want to increase the font size.

[Laughter]

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  A few things that I noted here.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Sure.

MS. ANDERSON:  And one is that many have an on-peak and off-peak rate.  And just so I am clear, are these applicable to anyone using the transmission system, whether they're domestic or exporters?  So everyone pays this?

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Yes.  I believe so, yes.  Yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  If there is an entry in the box, it means that we pulled it from a tariff source.  So it is an offered tariff service.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  And so it seems that there is a quite frequent use of on-peak and off-peak or some kind of non-fixed prices, let's just say.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Right, right.

MS. ANDERSON:  Any comments?

MR. DesLAURIERS:  Well, the price basis is -- I think if you look at the math, there's -- if you were to sum this up to an annual basis, it would equal the annual service charge.

So the underlying cost basis of the rate is the same.  The only thing that is really different is the term of the rate, if you will.

So for instance, you are purchasing just a one-hour MWh, a single MWh on a non-peak period or an off-peak period, as opposed to over an annual basis.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  And I also noted that many jurisdictions seem to have an annual service charge and a monthly service charge and a weekly service charge.

But is that for anyone at all using the transmission system regardless --


MR. DesLAURIERS:  Yes, yeah.

MS. ANDERSON:  -- of whether they are domestic or exporters?  So --


MR. DesLAURIERS:  Yes, yeah.  It is just offered on a different basis.

MS. ANDERSON:  And do you know the basis for coming up with, like, here's the price of -- here is your annual service charge, the price of using the system at all?

MR. DesLAURIERS:  It goes back to the ATRR calculation over -- you know, everything starts with a revenue requirement divided by the coincident peak.

And then they simply are -- you know, if you have a 12 CP and you have an annual revenue requirement, that is the basis for the annual rate.

But if you want to convert the annual rate to a monthly rate, you would simply divide that by 12, and that is what you see in the right-hand column, and so on and so forth.

But this particular chart we're looking at is, we've restated everything on an MWH basis, so...

MS. ANDERSON:  Oh, I see, okay.  And --


MR. DesLAURIERS:  But if you were to go back to one of the charts, like table 3, for instance, you would see how it is just simply one-twelfth of the annual, et cetera.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  I think you have answered all of my questions through your presentation, so I don't have anything further from that, so thank you, Mr. DesLauriers.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  You're welcome.  Thank you.

MS. ANDERSON:  We're not quite the ready to take the lunch break, so I guess the question is, Mr. Duffy, would you be ready for your team to do your presentation?  We might have to hold questions until after lunch.

MR. DUFFY:  If you can give me a second I will check with them and let you know here.

MR. SARDANA:  Ms. Anderson, while we're waiting on Mr. Duffy, maybe I do have a question for Mr. DesLauriers, if I can ask.

MS. ANDERSON:  Is he still there?

MR. SARDANA:  If he is still there, yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  Mr. DesLauriers, yes.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  I am.  Can you give me one second to come on camera?

MR. SARDANA:  Absolutely, yes.  Thank you.  So this question may be completely out of left field and you may not be able to answer it, but do you think that, you know, in your casual observation if I can put it like that, look at the lack of ICP-type pricing in the U.S. jurisdictions, would that be related at all to a fairly active futures market on NYMEX?  Because there are other mechanisms for traders to hedge their transactions and to, you know, reserve and hedge capacity.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  It is a difficult question.

Again, I am not really familiar with the detailed economics of these transactions.  Some of the prerequisites that have to take place for these export transactions to be scheduled, if you will, is there needs to be capacity in order to accommodate it.

There needs to be sufficient price difference so that the economics are such that with the -- you know, the addition of the transaction cost between the adder, the auction-based ICP result, and the ETS rate, that there is still value to be earned from the transaction.

So it seems to me that the ICP -- and again I am sure the IESO will correct me or, you know, Power Advisory could correct me -- but it seems that the ICP is in place to recover the value of the available capacity at the intertie to accommodate those transactions.

Whereas in U.S. jurisdictions, if there is no capacity for the transactions to flow, they just don't flow, right.  I mean they are all effectively curtailable.  Even a firm point to point export transaction could be "firm" with regards to what the tariff language says, but if there is a reliability problem for serving domestic market, those transactions don't flow.

MR. SARDANA:  Right.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  So long way of saying, I think that -- you know, to answer that question effectively you have to think about what costs you really are trying to defer or recover and I don't know that, you know, a futures market really protects against those kind of costs.

If you really want to have a transaction go where there is no capacity, a futures market isn't going to help you.

MR. SARDANA:  Fair enough.  Thank you.

MR. DesLAURIERS:  You're welcome.

MS. ANDERSON:  Mr. Duffy, what is the verdict?

MR. DUFFY:  We're not quite organized yet.  So our preference would be to take lunch now and we're happy to start a few minutes earlier than was scheduled at 1:15, if that makes sense.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Well, let's start back at one o'clock.

MR. DUFFY:  Okay, thank you.
--- Luncheon recess taken at 12:08 p.m.
--- On resuming at 1:03 p.m.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  We will start with Jonathan's items.

MR. MYERS:  Thank you.  So just one preliminary matter --


MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Sorry, Jonathan, just hang on a sec.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  I am just looking to see that I see Mr. Sardana.  There he is.  Just give me a sec here to get the right view.  Okay.  Thank you.

My understanding, Mr. Myers, is you had something that you wanted to raise before we get going?
Preliminary Matters:


MR. MYERS:  Yes.  Just one quick preliminary matter, thank you, in response to your request from earlier today for Hydro One to update the forecast ETS revenues as compared to what you saw in the JRAP application.

So Hydro One has done that.  They've updated the forecast, which had been on a rolling basis from 2018 to 2020, and so they've updated to 2019 to 2021.  Instead of $37 million, the updated forecast is $35 million.  I understand that is because of changes in the volume of exports.

And the intention would be to update in the JRAP proceeding.  At the draft rate order stage that forecast would be updated.  So hopefully that clears up that question for you.

MS. ANDERSON:  It clears it up for the purposes of this proceeding.  I think the panel for the JRAP proceeding will have to weigh into the impact to that particular proceeding.

MR. MYERS:  Okay.  Thank you.

MS. ANDERSON:  Good.  Thank you.  And Mr. Duffy -- a-ha, there you are.  Is your panel ready?  Not a panel.  Your presenters.

MR. DUFFY:  Presenter.  Good afternoon, thank you.  So our presentation will be given by Mr. Tom Chapman of the IESO this afternoon, and as I mentioned earlier, Mr. Chapman is the senior manager of wholesale market development at the IESO.
INDEPENDENT ELECTRICITY SYSTEM OPERATOR - PANEL 4
Tom Chapman


MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Sorry to interrupt, but just before we go into that presentation, let's mark that as Exhibit KP1.4.  Thank you.
EXHIBIT NO. KP1.4:  IESO PRESENTATION.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Thanks, sorry to interrupt.
Presentation by Mr. Chapman:


MR. CHAPMAN:  Okay.  So thank you, Patrick, for the introduction, and good afternoon, Commissioners.  It is a pleasure to be speaking with you today.

The presentation that I am providing on behalf of the IESO is to share, you know, the IESO's perspectives on the ETS and hopefully provide useful information as part of the hearing process.

The information -- there is a lot more detailed information as part of our formal submission and our responses to the interrogatories, but I want to touch upon maybe some of the highlights from the IESO's perspective that we would respectfully ask for consideration in rate assessment going forward.

George, if you could go to the next slide, please.

So the IESO is Ontario's grid operator.  So we do have a bit of a unique position, in that we are supply -- managing supply and demand on a five-minute basis to ensure reliable cost-effective supply to Ontario, and it's 24/7, 365 days a year.  And this slide just outlines some of our key responsibilities as it pertains to this topic.

So as I mentioned, we are the grid operator, with a control room that balances supply and demand.  And a key tool that we use to operate the grid in real time is Ontario's electricity market, and we operate and settle that wholesale electricity market with many market participants competing to supply power at the best-possible price, and that provides reliable, transparent operations of the wholesale grid.

And then the third area of responsibility is around planning for our future.  The IESO publishes many studies on a long-term time horizon through the annual planning outlooks and shorter-term studies on our reliability outlooks to provide information to the sector, market participants, and on future system conditions, and help inform decision-making, both for policy-makers and in the sector itself.

So I am here today to provide information in respect of these key responsibilities, so I can talk to the impact of the ETS on our market operations, I can talk to the impact on market outcomes, and I can talk to what we see as the system operator -- some of the economic impacts of the ETS on different participants in the marketplace.

Finally, we provided a little bit of information on something called the ICP, which -- you know, there is similarities to the ETS, but there is also some quite big differences to the ETS, that both transaction costs that traders need to pay, and hopefully I will provide a little bit of clarity around where they're similar and where maybe they differ.

So that is the idea behind this presentation.  And of course, happy to answer questions.  I am not sure if you're fielding questions as we go along or at the end.  I am comfortable doing either, so whatever works best for you.

Okay, George.  If we can move on.

So what I wanted to spend a couple of minutes on is explaining how important intertie transactions are to us at the IESO as the grid operator.

We have 5- to 6,000 megawatts of intertie capability, and they play a critical role, not a discretionary role, a critical role, in balancing supply and demand both in the short and the long term.

They effectively act as a safety valve during periods where we have excess supply over and above, you know, Ontario's domestic needs.

They provide an opportunity for that power to flow into our neighbouring markets to alleviate operational constraints and considerations, and also to monetize that power that then ultimately helps pay down some of the fixed costs to the system.

On the other -- on the intertie front, on the import side, you know, if we run into difficulties challenging operational conditions, interties -- our interties can bring in significant volumes of power to alleviate operational challenges during our peak periods in the event that we unexpectedly lose, you know, a large facility, generating facility.

So I can't emphasize enough just how important intertie trade is in Ontario, and I would argue that it is actually significantly more important than many of the other jurisdictions in North America.

And the reason I say that is because Ontario has a high share of baseload facilities in its supply mix.  It has a far higher share of baseload nuclear, baseload hydroelectric, and increasing amounts of wind generation compared to our neighbouring jurisdictions and most other jurisdictions in North America.

So the role that the interties play is critically important in managing the inflexibility of that baseload portion of our fleet.

And the final point I would like to add here is that interties have played a critically important role to date, and that importance is actually growing as we transition away from more conventional, predictable sources of power, and we bring online, you know, increasing intermittent generation in some of the new emerging technologies.

So as we transition to a cleaner grid, but a slightly more unpredictable grid, the value of interties and efficient intertie trades is increasing, and that isn't just in Ontario, that is commonplace across North America.

So George, can we move to the next slide.

So with that context, as one of the most important assets in Ontario for managing supply-demand imbalances both in the short- and the long-term, the ETS as a transaction cost that is levied on exports has the -- has the opportunity to impact trade volumes.

It is a fixed charge, and there are times when an economic transaction may not flow because due to the nature of the fixed charge it impacts the economics of the transaction.

And while the ETS has traditionally been or historically been relatively low, one to two dollars since market opening, from the IESO's perspective we haven't seen a material impact on our ability to operate the grid as a result of the ETS.

But if the ETS were to change in the future and it became a much larger cost, we could see it impacting export transactions more materially, and that will be a concern to the IESO, because we rely on exports during periods of excess to reliably manage our day-to-day operations.

And I will get into how that manifests in terms of the challenges we would face if we weren't able to operate with the degree of exports that we do in the next slide.

But if we didn't have -- I guess we can talk a little bit about it now.  If we didn't have exports, as I mentioned, we have a high share of baseload resources in the province.  A lot of those resources need time in order to manoeuvre and to reduce their output.  They can't switch on and off or even ramp up and down as flexibly as some other resources, and that makes it difficult to manage.

So if we didn't have the exports and the exports respond very dynamically to changes in market conditions, the IESO would have to take what we would call control actions as part of our operational planning time frame to, for example, increase spill at hydro-electric units.  And if we ask the large hydro generators to increase their spill, again it is not something they can turn on and turn off.

The spill may take a few days to organize, it may take a few days to come back to normal operations, and it is particularly acute with the nuclear units.  If we ask them to curtail, it is not a straightforward exercise and in a worst case, if we ask them to shut down as we have done in 2017, 2018, it can take three days for a nuclear unit to return to service.

In the meantime, as the grid operator, that means we have to change our operational plans, and it means we don't have the same supply stack to meet our day-to-day operational needs as we would if we hadn't had to curtail these resources.

What does that mean?  First of all, it means an awful lot of work to rearrange our operational plans which is an additional stress on the control room.  And it means if we run into unexpected events in the real time, our supply stack is skinnier than it would have been, which means there is less resources to call upon before we have to take out of market control actions such as, you know, reducing voltage, curtailing exports, other undesirable out of market conditions that are both costly and operationally problematic.

So as a transaction cost that impacts -- has the potential to significantly impact export volumes, we're concerned that if export volumes -- economic export volumes were to be significantly impacted, it would have a material impact on our ability to operate the grid in the short term.

We saw that, as I mentioned, in 2017, 2018, where even with the exports, we had so much baseload generation that there were times when we were in those years doing up to 1,000 nuclear curtailments, there were two to three complete nuclear shutdowns.

This was a very stressful time for the IESO, and it is not a situation that we want to be in.

So we would advise against any decisions that could potentially put us in those types of situations in the future.  Maybe we could move on to the next slide, George.

While our primary concern is of course reliability and our ability to operate the grid effectively in the day-to-day time frame, there are also costs associated with a loss of exports.

We've done some analysis as part of this hearing process, and in our report we break down the expected benefits or the assessed benefits that exports have provided to Ontario ratepayers in recent years.

Those benefits, they're not insubstantial, they're in the hundreds of millions of dollars and they come from a number of sources.  We collect congestion rents, ICP on intertie, on exports, we collect the ETS uplifts and if we avoid some of those extensive costly manoeuvres that I was just talking about, those are also potential savings for ratepayers as well.

So in totality, up to about half a billion dollars a year in exports are contributing to offset ratepayer costs.

And I guess the other point I wanted to make here is that it is not necessarily a linear relationship.  So if we saw a reduction in exports of 50 percent or 20 percent, it is not necessarily a reduction in revenues or benefits of 20 percent or 50 percent.

We may see a relatively small drop in the volume of exports, but we might see -- we might lose the majority of those export benefits.

So it is not necessarily a linear relationship between the volume of exports and the benefits that they provide.

Okay, George, can you move on?

So as I mentioned at the outset of my remarks, there is a couple of transaction costs that traders need to pay in order to export power out of the province.

The ETS is a fixed charge and is one of those payments.  The other charge that they have to pay is ICP or congestion rents, as we refer to them.

These congestion rents are paid by exporters on an hourly basis and they are the difference between the price that the exporter pays and the Ontario -- hourly Ontario energy price.

So the hourly Ontario energy price may be low, it may be, you know, a couple of dollars.  But if the price in the neighbouring jurisdiction is say $25, this ICP will rise to probably in the $22 range.

So the trader will actually pay $23 to export power even though the Ontario energy price was, you know, zero dollars or one dollar.  And that difference is collected by the IESO and it's collected in a special account called the transmission rates clearing account.

Now, that difference between the Ontario -- Hourly Ontario Energy Price and the intertie zonal price the trader pays, it would change on an hourly basis, it changes across each of the interties, and it is a reflection -- the IZP, intertie zonal price is a reflection of competition between the traders and how much are they willing to pay in order to export power out of the province.

So there are times when that ICP that we collect is zero.  And there is times when that ICP we collect -- you know, in recent months, it's been as high as sixty, seventy dollars a megawatt per hour.  And it is a function of market conditions, the price spreads between Ontario and our neighbours, and the degree of competition between traders bidding up the price in order to be the lucky trader to export -- or lucky traders to export power across the interties.

So the key difference between ETS, the ETS is a fixed charge of $1.85, and the ICP can vary anywhere from usually zero up to a much higher amount.

Likewise the amount we collect on an analysed basis, we just heard that, you know, we collected $35 million in ETS -- a little bit different from the previous forecast of $37 million, but, you know, in the same ballpark.  Whereas the ICP is typically varied any where from $100 million in the last six or seven years to --it's going to be over $200 million a year this year for sure, so it is quite a wide sprayed in the ICP relative to the ETS.  But typically, the amount we're collecting is also an order of magnitude greater than the ETS.

So the two charges, they both are paid for by traders.  A key difference is one is a fixed charge and one is a variable charge.  But ultimately, this revenue that is collected in some shape or form, eventually most of it makes its way back to Ontario ratepayers.

There has been questions on whether we can rely on congestion rents on a go forward basis in the same way that we can rely on ETS revenues on a go forward basis.  And while the IESO doesn't do economic forecasts, we do forecasts for planning and reliability and operational studies.  We don't do economic forecasts.

Our perspective is while Ontario maintains a high share of baseload assets in its supply mix with low marginal cost, it will create the right conditions to facilitate significant volumes of exports relative to our neighbouring jurisdictions that have a much smaller share of baseload resources and a much higher marginal cost.

So until those structural changes either -- until our neighbours invest in large amounts of baseload low marginal cost generation, which will take many years, or if Ontario for some reason decided it wasn't going to persist with, you know, its nuclear and hydro baseload assets, until that -- until that structural change happens, the conditions are maintained for a high volume of exports.

If we have a high volume of exports, we will collect relatively high amounts of congestion rents across the interties because the traders will compete to move that power, when Ontario doesn't need it, into those neighbouring jurisdictions where they have higher prices.

So from our perspective, it is hard to pinpoint precisely what the congestion rents will be, but we have a high degree of confidence that while the structural supply mix conditions are in place, it will create favourable trading opportunities and we will continue to collect congestion rents.

Now, there are obviously changes on the horizon in Ontario with the retirement at Pickering and the other supply mix changes, and there is activities going on in our neighbours to move away from fossil fuels, but a lot of these structural changes will take time to play out.  So for the foreseeable future at least we don't see a material reduction in congestion rents that we will collect.

Okay, George.  How am I doing for time?

So when it comes to the congestion rents we collect, as I mentioned, it is a dynamic amount.  It varies hour to hour and it varies across the interties.

When price spreads are large, and we see large price spreads typically now between, for example, Ontario and Michigan, where the price differential may be 30, 40 dollars at times.  If there was an increase or a decrease to the ETS, there will be a corresponding increase or decrease in the ICP, and it would be almost a one-for-one relationship.

So whether the -- because the price difference is so large, the ETS went up or went down, we will just see a corresponding decrease in the ICP or an increase in the ICP.  The physical flow of power would not be impacted and the total amount collected would largely stay the same.

Where we do see a difference is on other interties, for example like the New York intertie, where we transact about 6 terawatt-hours of energy every year, where the margins are typically much smaller.  The margins might be $3 or $5.  The price difference between Ontario and New York may be three dollars or five dollars on average, and if a trader has to pay three dollars in IESO uplifts and then pay $1.85 in the ETS, that doesn't leave much of a profit margin, right?  If the price difference is $5 it is still just about economically 15 cents.  But if the ETS was, for example, two dollars or $2.25, there will be no reason to transact.

So it is on those interties under those conditions where we see the most difference between the ICP and the ETS.  The ICP would naturally contract to facilitate -- to make sure it wasn't interfering with an efficient transaction.

So the ICP on the New York time might drop right down to zero and allow the trade to flow.  We get the operational benefits.  We wouldn't collect much in the way of ICP.  Whereas the ETS as a fixed charge would potentially interfere with what would otherwise be an efficient trade.

So when the price differences between us and our neighbours are small, that is when you really see a different dynamic play out between the ETS and the ICP.

Okay, George.  Can we go to the next slide.

So maybe from the IESO's perspective, the final piece of the puzzle is we collect these congestion rents, collecting, you know, close to 100 million, 200 million dollars a year.  In 2022 it's probably going to be the most ICP we have ever collected.  In the first six months we've already collected $200 million, and we're not even into the second part of the year.  That is predominantly down to high natural-gas prices that are setting the prices in our neighbouring jurisdictions and creating a big price spread between our supply fleet and their supply fleets and those market prices.

So the money that we collect in terms of ICP is put into this transmission rights clearing account along with a couple of other line items.  In order to facilitate efficient trading, we auction off what are known as transmission rights.  They provide traders with a hedge if they want to buy a right against congestion that they have to pay.

In return for buying a transmission right, they are -- they receive a payout if there is congestion.  So there is a couple of other line items in the account that have to be taken into consideration, but ultimately the combination of the congestion rents we receive, the auction revenues that we receive, the transmission right payouts that we pay out to traders, the residual or surplus is disbursed back to market participants on a volumetric basis on a semi-annual basis, as long as we're in excess of a $20 million buffer threshold.

And that is -- that's worked quite well since market opening.  We have made a number of changes to this account since 2014, '15, and then most recently in 2019, the change, the share of disbursements in response to market surveillance panel recommendation, but, yes, this process is how we return those congestion rents we receive from traders back to Ontario market participants who, in turn, you know, disburse them back to their customers through their settlement statements.

And I think that is it for the main content, aside from the summary slide.  So, George, maybe go to the last slide.

So, yeah, in summary, as the grid operator, system operator, as the planner and the market operator, we can provide an operational perspective that can talk to some of the operational considerations, the economic impacts, but we do acknowledge that there are other factors that go into setting, you know, a regulatory charge such as the ETS, but we do appreciate the opportunity to at least provide our perspective and allow our voice to be heard, and we do believe that some of these operational and economic benefits that we -- that we have witnessed firsthand as the system operator, the potential impacts the ETS has on those can be taken into account.

And finally, I think at the current levels we can operate the grid reliably and cost-effectively with the ETS.  If the ETS were to increase and it had a material impact on export volumes, that would be a concern to us, because it would potentially lead to reduced system flexibility and increased curtailments and make our job as the system operator more difficult.

With that, perhaps -- I think I am on time.  It is 1:30.  I will open it up to questions.
Questions by the Board:


MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chapman.  That was very helpful.  So, yes, we will start with the Panel questions.  Mr. Sardana, do you have questions for the IESO?

MR. SARDANA:  Sure.  Thanks, Mr. Chapman.  I agree with Ms. Anderson.  That was very helpful.  You did answer a few of my questions, but I just want -- and perhaps my questions are now more clarification than real questions.

Can we just go to the previous slide, then, slide 9.  I think Mr. Vetsis at Hydro One did answer this.

Isn't it somewhat incorrect to say that the disbursements from the TRCA go to offsetting revenue requirements of market participants, you know, particularly the local distribution companies and Hydro One.  I think it is a market service charge, right?  It is not offsetting revenue requirements.  The ETS does offset Hydro One's revenue requirement, but -- and so this is just more of a clarification.

MR. CHAPMAN:  I believe you are correct.  I think with all of the regulatory experts -- and we probably shouldn't have capitalized "revenue requirements" -- I think you are correct.  It offsets the transmission service charges that flow back to ratepayers, yes.

MR. SARDANA:  Okay.  And then I think on one of your previous slides you mentioned that there's -- when the difference between the zones is small or when the ETS and ICP are very close to each other, it certainly has an impact.

But isn't there a missing piece of that puzzle, in that you didn't mention the TRCA or the transmission rights holders in that little piece, in that, you know, I would expect that traders know when -- or have a pretty good idea that a certain intertie is going to be congested, and they would go and purchase those rights.

And so that should certainly factor into that difference between the ETS and the ICP, in that if I am holding a right, I've got some expectation of a payout down the road to offset those costs, so sure, the ETS does matter, in that it would factor into their calculation to say, yeah, I've got a fixed charge here.  I have to pay this.  And, yes, the difference is pretty small, so the crumbs that I am going after may be small, but, oh, yes, I have got a payout coming later down the road, perhaps.

I just wonder, doesn't that factor in as well?

MR. CHAPMAN:  Yes.  I think that is a good assessment.

Now, the transmission right that we sell basically takes away the price risk for the trader because, as you said, if you hold the transmission right, you are entitled to the congestion payout.

MR. SARDANA:  Right.

MR. CHAPMAN:  Whatever it is, $5, $20, so it takes away that risk.

What it means is the trader doesn't have to worry about it.  So that they will bid up the price to the maximum extent possible and it ensures that -- not all traders by transmission rights, all of the time, about for 40 percent of transactions are backed by a transmission right.  But because the holders of the transmission rights don't have to worry about it, they will bid up the price to the maximum possible which means we're collecting the maximum possible congestion rents from the remainder of the trades, the 60 percent that aren't backed by a transmission right.

So it serves the traders.  It provides value to the traders, but it also ensures that we're getting the maximum value out of the interties as well for ratepayers.

MR. SARDANA:  Right.  Yes.  And then help me formulate this question properly if I don't get it right.

Would you agree that the ETS probably has a different impact on different interties, in that if there's a transaction between say Ontario and Quebec, certainly both jurisdictions have to take more actions than just having flows go, you know, one-to-one or dynamically.

They have to take control actions, they have to transfer systems to each other's jurisdictions.

So those transactions are -- once they are arranged they're probably firm.  They're going to go through, unless there is some real reliability concerns that crop up.

It is almost -- and this is the question. Does the ETS even matter for that kind of transaction?  Because if you are arranging that, you are going to go ahead and arrange that and you will pay the ETS and you are going to export versus say Ontario to New York with dynamic and flows are happening real time and, you know, everything happens as the IESO's control room wants it to happen.

MR. CHAPMAN:  Yes.  Probably a good observation.  It does vary according to the interface and the scheduling on both sides of the border.

MR. SARDANA:  Yes.

MR. CHAPMAN:  How important the ETS is to export, you know, volumes.

MR. SARDANA:  Okay.  I don't really know that I was going anywhere with that, it is just that I guess the ETS does matter depending on the intertie.  It matters more to some than others.

MR. CHAPMAN:  Even on the Quebec intertie, for example, the main trader there being –it's not just Hydro Quebec, but there's other traders.  If they're exporting out of Ontario to take advantage of maybe low marginal cost power overnight and they're looking to inject it the following day during our peak periods, which is a pretty common trade on the Quebec side, but the ETS will still have an impact on the export opportunities because if our price -- because the traders still have to pay and they have to make sure they can earn it back during a round trip trade.

So it will have an impact, but not as much of an impact as particularly on the New York intertie.

The only thing I would say, is -- we only have limited time, but even say on the Michigan tie where the spreads are on average quite wide, there will be many hours where the spreads are narrow.  So it is not so much this jurisdiction or that jurisdiction, across all the interties apart from the Quebec one, there will be times when the price spread is narrow and there will be times where the price spread is quite wide, and you will see how the ETS verses the ICP plays out will vary according to the size of the spread.

MR. SARDANA:  Right.  Okay, thank you for that.  Then just a question on slide 5, and I think you did answer this. You noted that there have been nuclear curtailments in the 2017-2018 period.

But has there been any nuclear units curtailed because of an uneconomic ETS, or were they for other operational reasons?

MR. CHAPMAN:  A good question.  I think it is hard -- it would be hard to isolate -- it would be hard to isolate, you know, a nuclear shutdown or curtailment specifically to the ETS.

I guess it's a combination of factors and maybe I did a poor job explaining.

As these transaction costs increase, we increase the risk, the chances we will have to take one of these control actions.  It is hard to pinpoint exactly what triggered it, but a combination of the ETS, market conditions, the supply-demand imbalance, combined with other issues on the grid could lead to -- it would be one contributor to leading to one of those control measures.

The more -- the higher the ETS, I guess, the higher weighting it would play in that.  But it would be hard to isolate it specifically.

MR. SARDANA:  Yes.  And I appreciate that answer.  I think you have answered it well.  I guess the other way of asking it is if the ETS were zero, you know, and you found yourselves in a position where you have taken all actions and we still have to curtail nuclear units, how much of a difference would the ETS have made?  We're talking $1.85 currently.  Is that the trigger, is that the marginal action that says, okay, now we have to do this?

MR. CHAPMAN:  Again, materiality I think that is why you haven't seen, you know, the ETS -- sorry, the IESO strongly advocate for an ETS going to zero because of operations.

We have been able to manage the grid in its historical range.  What we have seen is across the interties, margins during hours or particular in size can be very small.  Our concern is more if the ETS was to increase, because it could then become the deciding factor between taking a nuclear unit off-line or not.

MR. SARDANA:  Yes.

MR. CHAPMAN:  To date, there's been issues, in particular years where we have had surplus, 2016-2019, it wasn't helping because it was an extra contributor.

At the current levels, it is manageable.  To be honest, from an operational perspective, the risk would be reduced if the went to zero.  But it's not as if it isn't manageable at the current levels.

MR. SARDANA:  Okay, thank you, fair enough.  Thank you.  I think the other questions I had were answered, Ms. Anderson, so I can turn it over to Anthony.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Good afternoon, Mr. Chapman, how are you?

MR. CHAPMAN:  Good afternoon.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  I have a couple -- I have two questions for you, but the second one is kind of long.  I will start with the easy one.

What's the latest -- what's the IESO's latest timing for implementation of the market renewal program, in particular locational marginal pricing?

MR. CHAPMAN:  To be honest, I'm not part of the market renewal project team.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.

MR. CHAPMAN:  I don't have the latest date for you.  I believe it is being, you know, reviewed.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.

MR. CHAPMAN:  I'm not sure what has been made public at this time.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Fair enough.  Okay.

MS. ANDERSON:  Just before we leave that, is that something that could be taken away, to see if there is anything that is public?

MR. CHAPMAN:  Sure.  I mean I'm happy to take that back to the business and get an IESO response for you.

MS. ANDERSON:  I think it would be helpful to know the status, again, to what is in public realm.

MR. DUFFY:  We can certainly do that.  Mr. Sidlofsky, I know you were numbering them at some point.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  We will make that undertaking JP1.3.
UNDERTAKING NO. JP1.3:  TO ADVISE THE STATUS OF IESO'S PLAN FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MARKET RENEWAL PROGRAM, IN PARTICULAR LOCATIONAL MARGINAL PRICING.


MR. DUFFY:  Okay.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Thank you for that, Ms. Anderson.  I would not have asked, but thank you.

Mr. Chapman, I don't think we need to pull this up, but I am referring to day one of the technical conference.  There was an exchange -- if you do want a page reference, it was starting at the bottom of page 116 of the transcript.

Again, I don't think we need to pull this up, but it was an exchange between yourself and Mr. Vellone on behalf of APPrO.

And in that exchange, you characterized Power Advisory's assessment that they did on curtailment as being conservative, because I believe it didn't include the impact of curtailing or manoeuvring nuclear.  Does that ring a bell?

MR. CHAPMAN:  It does ring a bell.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Is it a correct characterization of what you said?

MR. CHAPMAN:  So the bottom line numbers I characterized as maybe under estimating the impact for two reasons.

One, the answer was in their report.  In their report, they said they make conservative assumptions.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Hmm-hmm.

MR. CHAPMAN:  So that was in part one thing that I was honing in on, that they themselves made conservative assumptions which were flowing through to the potential cost and benefits.

And the second part of my response, I believe, was that it was understandable.  I mean, they don't work at the IESO, so they don't necessarily have the same insights to the challenges that we face in the operational time frame of the actions we need to take in order to -- when we manoeuvre nuclear units and, you know, the things we have to do to spill large amounts of hydro and then the costs that we incur to -- what happens is we take those units off line in large chunks, which means they're not now available for energy in real time, which means we have to get energy from somewhere else.

And that might come from a much more expensive marginal resource like the gas plant, or it may come from imports.  But there is a whole series of costs that are associated with replacement energy which I am not sure was fully factored into the Power Advisory analysis.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.  Just a moment, please.

Yeah, and I believe also in that exchange you referred to -- and again, you did it in your slide presentation today.  Excuse me just one second.  I just want to clear my throat.  Just give me a second.

Apologies.  And again today you talked about, you know, what would the costs be of a three-day shutdown, and would it be a huge task to provide an estimate of what the costs would be of a three-day shutdown of a nuclear unit?  And if it is a big task, please don't undertake to provide it.  But I am just trying to get a ballpark sense in terms of, what does it cost to manoeuvre a nuclear unit or cost of a shutdown and say, as you said, you know, rely more heavily on imports or high-cost marginal units like gas-fired generation.

MR. CHAPMAN:  We have provided that information in the past, so I am happy to take that out and provide it.  It is in the millions of dollars.  The only thing I would say is, from our perspective, it is also not -- the dollars, the immediate dollars, is one thing.  But these facilities weren't designed to be operated in that way.

So, yes, as a step for curtailing load, it is something that makes sense.  But to do as a regular course of business, it makes no sense, and I'm not saying we're playing with fire, but we are increasing the risk of human error on something that really wasn't designed to be operated in that way, and ultimately that is probably -- there is a financial cost in the short-term, but, you know, messing about with these types of facilities in a way that they weren't designed to do is -- we should be trying to avoid those situations as much as possible.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.  So if you have something readily available, terrific.  If you don't, that is fine as well.

MR. CHAPMAN:  Okay.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  The other -- the follow-up question, though, is that in order to -- you know, after you have done everything you can to avoid manoeuvring or curtailing a nuclear unit, chances are you will start with when the gas fleet, hydro, and nuclears, like an absolute last resort.  Is that fair?

MR. CHAPMAN:  Yeah.  Because wind, hydro, nuclear, we don't -- yeah, we don't normally curtail natural gas, but...

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.

MR. CHAPMAN:  The sequence --


MR. ZLAHTIC:  You wouldn't dispatch gas.

MR. CHAPMAN:  That's correct.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  But isn't another way of avoiding manoeuvring and shutdowns is, you know, OPG would offer in those nuclear units at a negative price?  Because, I mean, often we see negative pricing for, you know, during off-peak hours, you know, when surplus baseload generation is most prevalent.

MR. CHAPMAN:  Yeah.  And that's correct.  There is a huge cost, and they want to run, and so we saw -- it is not just a nuclear that would offer in at negative prices, but also the hydroelectric run of river plants, and even some of the contracted facilities like the wind generators would, you know, still make money at a negative price based on the contracts.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Right.

MR. CHAPMAN:  So the IESO has actually put in floor prices for some of these resources, but otherwise what happens is everyone sinks to the bottom in order to remain online.  So we put in floor prices to make sure it is -- it's a structured curtailment according to the ranking you just described, like, first of all it is the wind.  Then it is the hydro.  And then it is the last resort, nuclear.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  I am just going to interrupt there.  Mr. Chapman, I think I could describe it as an estimate of the cost of a three-day shutdown of a nuclear unit.  Is that right?  That would be Undertaking JP1.4.  If I have got that wrong, if you could describe it better, that would be great.  


UNDERTAKING NO. JP1.4:  TO PROVIDE AN ESTIMATE OF THE COST OF A THREE-DAY SHUTDOWN OF A NUCLEAR UNIT.

MR. CHAPMAN:  I believe that was the request.  Yes.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Okay.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Yes, that was the request.  Thank you, Mr. Chapman.  I have no further questions.

MS. ANDERSON:  Great.  Thank you.  And as Mr. Sardana said, you have answered a number of my questions, so I am going to see if there's slightly different ways of expanding on them, so bear with me for a second.

The first one is a simple one.  And I apologize, I don't know who made this comment, but someone made a comment about exports being called curtailable, as opposed to interruptible.  And I don't know whether that was directed at something the IESO says or someone else.

But do you have a definition of the difference between something that is interruptible or curtailable?

MR. CHAPMAN:  So we refer to them as curtailable at the IESO.  I don't believe we have interruptible class in Ontario.  It was just probably why we refer to them as curtailable.  There are other nuanced differences as well.

I wouldn't be the best person to ask for a definitive explanation or definition of each of those two terms, but we don't have an interruptible class in the same way that they might have, that there is in other jurisdictions.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay, so thank you, that is even helpful.  But the IESO would refer to them as curtailable?

MR. CHAPMAN:  Yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay, thank you.

And so -- and this goes back to your slide 5, where you say -- and I think I've got the answer here, but you say "an increase in the ETS will reduce exports and..."

I just wanted to clarify the -- it is this notion of the increase.  So I think what I heard you say is the current $1.85 is manageable -- has been manageable.  Is any increase an issue or -- to how you run the market?  Or again, is it a -- you know, probabilities that we're talking about?  A material increase one could understand.  But you didn't say that.  You said an increase.

MR. CHAPMAN:  Yeah.  No, I understand the question.  It increases -- an increase in the ETS would increase the probability that we would have to take some of these types of control actions.

You know, it is hard to pinpoint precisely the impact it would have on trade volumes, like, you know, down to the specific number, but it increases the probability that in the absence of exports we would have to take undesirable control actions.

The only point I would say is that, again, it is not really a linear relationship.  It is not like if you increased it by 20 percent there will be a 20 percent chance you might have to take a control action.

There are certain times when it comes like a step function, right?  You hit a point where you now have to take a nuclear unit offline because of system conditions at the time, and it could be that that price point is $1.87.

If we were in a period of significant excess during a -- shoulder seasons, for example, where we were flush with power and we need to export it, and Ontario demand is at 10,000 megawatts overnight because no one is using heating or cooling, and we have fresh air full-blast, we have all the nuclear units operating, and market prices are low, it could be that the $1.87 is the point where we actually have to take the control action.

Other times it might not be, you know, it might not be -- it might be a much higher number, but it really increases the probability that we will need to take one of these types of active, you know, actions.

MS. ANDERSON:  So it is a question of probabilities, basically?

MR. CHAPMAN:  Yes.  I think, yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  So, thank you.  There was one thing that you mentioned with the Quebec market, and I think you used the term "round-trip trades", and that the ETS was perhaps not as impactive, and why that twigged with me is when we get to APPrO and Power Advisory they had a chart that showed significant exports, I think it was with the Quebec market in January and February, at a time when the price differential was quite high.

And so what would be the rationale for something like that?  Is that one of these round-trip trades?

MR. CHAPMAN:  Yes.  Actually, we have seen change on the Quebec interface.  They have a growing demand in Quebec and especially in the winter, and we've seen significant volumes, I guess -- you know, as Power Advisory showed in their chart.  So that intertie might be changing a little bit.  We might be seeing more economic exports out of Ontario, whereas before we used to see exports overnight when prices were cheaper here and they could save their water behind their damns and use it during the peak periods themselves.

Now they're actually looking for -- at certain times looking for Ontario power during the day and night.  So that's the thing with interties; they're very flexible.  They dynamically adjust to changing market conditions and
-- traditionally, we were a net importer for many years and as we changed our supply mix, we became a net exporter.

We didn't change anything.  It is just the flows changed automatically in response to those changing market conditions.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  That leads into where my next question was going.  You use the term "in the foreseeable future" that we will continue to have these exports.

What is your definition of the foreseeable future?

MR. CHAPMAN:  Well, I mean I would say in the next five to ten years would be, you know, if I am put on the spot.

So the congestion rents that we collect are a function of volume and the price differences. So one of the big difference -- one of the big drivers behind prices is what happening in the natural gas market and with the recent geo-political developments, there has been a significant change, whereas a few years ago it was shale gas, the market was flooded with cheap gas.  Now you have one of the world's largest markets not supplying the world with gas.

And that dynamic, it's hard to see how that is going to change in the short term.

So it is likely we will see materially higher natural gas prices for quite some time and that ensures while, you know, New York and Michigan continue to operate, natural gas plants and fossil plants, you will see continued price spreads in those markets.  And in Ontario, our exports are primarily from, you know, nuclear, water, and wind where it might be priced at five dollars.

So going to my earlier point, until you see, you know, structural changes in the supply mix, it is hard to see Ontario switching from being -- the export volumes to reduce.  They will reduce as we, you know, retire Pickering.  That takes away a lot of baseload capability, but by the end of the decade, we will have 12,000 megawatts of nuclear capability on line, which is actually more than today.

So there are some puts and takes even on Ontario's supply mix.  But when you look holistically, in my opinion I guess -- and other people will have their own opinions, but it is hard to see how the congestion rents would materially drop in the near term.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay, thanks.  I was particularly wondering whether, you know, it was part of a 20-year outlook or something like that.  But you are thinking foreseeable future being more certain perhaps five to ten years?

MR. CHAPMAN:  Correct.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Thank you.  I think as we have talked about the ICP very much or the -- it depends on the market conditions, and we talked about the fact that it is variable, whereas the ETS is fixed.

And does that not lead into the question of whether the ETS should have some variability to it?  And is that something that has ever been looked at, something that would say, you know, perhaps at times when the clearing price is zero or negative, there might be value to a lower ETS than at a period of time when that is not the case?

Or you know, we've seen in the other jurisdictions, they just follow an on-peak off-peak type thing.  There could be all sort of different ways of it being not being fixed at some point in the future.

Are you aware if that is something that has ever been considered?  Any thoughts on, you know, the implications of trying to do something less fixed for an ETS at some point in the future?

MR. CHAPMAN:  I am not aware on the ETS front of any work that's being done to make it a more dynamic regulatory charge verses a fixed charge.

Speaking on behalf of the IESO, but not having talked to anybody at the IESO on this question, I think we would be very supportive of any way of making the ETS more dynamic and more aligned with prevailing market conditions, because then that would ensure that just like the ICP, it is self adjusting to make sure it is not interfering with efficient trades.  But also, in the case of the ETS, maybe providing some revenue certainty that, you know, is more challenging with the ICP.

So I think there is a number of ways it could be made more dynamic and I think that would be something definitely worth looking at on a go-forward basis.

MS. ANDERSON:  So not next month is what you are saying?  Have it done for next month, yeah.

MR. CHAPMAN:  But I would say -- maybe the corollary is the ETS is a relatively small charge in the grand scheme of things.

So if it resulted in a much more complex charge to administer, a lot more bureaucratic overhead or stuff like that, is it worth it?  And I guess that would also have to be taken into consideration.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Thanks.  So I am going to circle back to something that you were interacting with Mr. Sardana about, and I am hoping Mr. Vetsis from Hydro One is still here.  And it got into how the TRCA clears through to market participants.

I think you corrected it, that it's not an offset to the revenue requirement, but I think you said it flowed through the transmission charges.

And I think what we heard Mr. Vetsis say is it was the wholesale market service charge, which is a different charge and is cleared on a different basis.  I think it was account 1580.

Mr. Vetsis, can you just confirm that for us, if you are still there?

MR. VETSIS:  Yes.  I'm still here, Ms. Anderson.  And yes, that is our understanding, that the TRCA offsets the whole wholesale market service charge based on the accounting.

MS. ANDERSON:  It doesn't lower the transmission charges to people.  It would again clear it through this wholesale market charge.  I just wanted to make sure we clarified that.

Just for your information, the other thing that we have asked Hydro One to clarify is, when it flows back to ratepayers, is it flowing back in to different kinds of ratepayers in the same way that the ETS would?  Because the ETS is an offset to revenue requirement, whereas the other is not.  And, you know, we've got different types of customers, RPP customers, class A, class B, and other different scenarios.  So we did ask for that.

I don't expect you to answer that, because we hopefully will get a good answer from Hydro One.

So if the ETS was zero -- I think you have said there is no linear relationships with things.  But just if the ETS was zero, would you anticipate that the balance in the TRCA would increase by at least as much as that 35-million-dollar revenue forecast that we have for ETS revenues?

MR. CHAPMAN:  It's tricky to answer definitively because if the ETS was to drop to zero, we would collect more ICP on the lines -- the lines that are congested.  So when the traders are competing, we would collect more
ETS -- ICP revenues on those lines.

But not all lines are congested all of the time.  So there will be some flows where we would collect less ETS revenue.

However, we will -- we would also -- it would provide some -- we would likely see over time more export volumes that would provide some operational benefits to the IESO and we would see some of those costs that I mentioned earlier, the avoided costs would decrease -- increase.  The benefits would increase, but we would see reduced costs.

So again, it is a bit hard to say definitively.  I think actually to be honest, I think the balance in the TRCA would drop, but does that mean that ratepayers are worse off?  I'm not sure that they would be worse off, because some of those avoided costs-benefits don't show up in the TRCA, right?  They just -- they show up elsewhere in the system.

On balance, if the ETS went to zero, there would be an increase in the ETS and an increase in the avoided cost-benefits.  In our opinion, that was pretty close to any change in the ETS revenue.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Thank you.  And just so I am clear on the slide that we are on right now, slide 9, so you clear the TRCA surplus if it is greater than 20 million.  You do that twice a year.

And the market rule amendment, does -- that was just this most recent one -- does that mean that it -- what was the significant change there?

MR. CHAPMAN:  The significant change -- the significant change was how we discussed the surplus.  It previously went to exporters and Ontario loads in one particular way, and then we changed it so that the proportion that went back to ratepayers effectively increased.  It used to be 87 percent went to back to ratepayers.  Under the new methodology it could go up to 98 percent.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  So can I read from this slide that if this year we have 200 million that is being collected for ICP and close to 95 percent is going to ratepayers, that those -- and by ratepayers you're saying market participants, I assume?

MR. CHAPMAN:  Hmm-hmm.

MS. ANDERSON:  That we've got something like 190 million flowing back through the IESO invoices?

MR. CHAPMAN:  I think -- so there's a bit of a lag in terms of how these revenues are received and paid out.  So for example, the transmission rights were sold before this period, and then the payouts are in real time.

So we would have to see how that -- how those line items settled.  So there is a -- yeah, there is a bit of a lag.  In this cycle because of the unusual market conditions it might be a little different from the 95 percent.  We will just have to see.  But historically up until we've seen this, you know, unusual market conditions starting six months ago, there's been the trend.  95 percent is being paid out.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Would it be possible then if you say it is unusual right now and we're in a partial year, but is it possible to get the number of how much was paid out in, like, 2021?

MR. CHAPMAN:  In 2021?  Yes.  We could do that, and we made the most recent payout in May 2022.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.

MR. CHAPMAN:  I believe we paid out 70.8, 70.8 million dollars in --


MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Well, it would be helpful to know, given you do it twice a year, the last -- maybe the last three payouts, what those are.  Is that possible --


MR. CHAPMAN:  Sure.  We can definitely provide that, yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  I think -- Mr. Sidlofsky?

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  I am here again.  We will make that Undertaking JT1.5 -- sorry, JP1.5.
UNDERTAKING NO. JP1.5:  TO PROVIDE THE LAST THREE PAYOUTS.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  And those were my questions.  Mr. Sardana or Mr. Zlahtic, do you have any other follow-ups from that?

MR. ZLAHTIC:  I actually have a question for Mr. Sidlofsky.  The -- and Ms. Anderson, you picked up on asking for an undertaking for the timing of locational marginal pricing.  Was that given an undertaking number?  Sorry, and if it was, I missed it.

MS. ANDERSON:  For the MRP?

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Yes, yes.

MS. ANDERSON:  Yeah.  Good question.  Was there an undertaking for that?

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  No.  JP1.4 was the cost of the three-day shutdown, and then we went to JP1.5.  So let's make that -- sorry?

UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER:  Sorry, Mr. Sidlofsky, sorry to interrupt you.  Is not JP1.3 on the status of MRP and the timing of those changes?  Is that not the same one?

MS. ANDERSON:  I haven't been writing it down.

UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER:  Okay.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  See, I didn't hear -- I didn't -- Mr. Sidlofsky, I didn't hear you jump in giving an undertaking number.  That is why I raised it.

MR. SIDLOFSKY:  Sorry, Mr. Price tells me that, yes, that was Undertaking JP1.3.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Oh, sorry.  Okay.

MR. DUFFY:  And Mr. Zlahtic, to the extent that it didn't refer directly to LRP -- sorry, LMP, we will certainly incorporate that in the response for you

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay.  Sorry for that.  I just --


MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you --


MR. ZLAHTIC:  -- wanted to make sure.

MS. ANDERSON:  That was an important clarification about not just MRP in general, but LMP.  I will get the acronyms correct here.

So those were our questions.  Mr. Chapman, it was extremely helpful.  I really appreciate it, and thank you.

MR. CHAPMAN:  Well, thank you for the opportunity, and good luck with the rest of the presentations.

MS. ANDERSON:  Great.  Thank you.

We're only 2:09.  So Mr. Vellone, are you prepared to move ahead before the break?

MR. VELLONE:  Give me a second to see if Mr. Lusney and Mr. Yauch are here.  They are.  And are you guys comfortable proceeding?

MR. LUSNEY:  We are.

MR. VELLONE:  Okay.  Madam Chair, we are.

MS. ANDERSON:  Great.  Well, then let's proceed with APPrO, thanks, and Power Advisory.

MR. VELLONE:  Okay.  Madam Chair, I would like to take a moment just to introduce our presenters again.

With us today from Power Advisory we have Mr. Travis Lusney -- he is the director of power systems -- and Mr. Brady Yauch, manager, markets and regulatory.  And if you will give me a moment I will attempt to share my screen.
ASSOCIATION OF POWER PRODUCERS OF ONTARIO - PANEL 5
Travis Lusney

Brady Yauch


MR. SIDLOFSKY:  And while Mr. Vellone is doing that in anticipation of a slide deck, we will mark that as Exhibit KP1.5.
EXHIBIT NO. KP1.5:  APPRO AND POWER ADVISORY PRESENTATION.
Presentation by Mr. Lusney:


MR. LUSNEY:  So great.  Thank you very much, Panel, for having us on to do presentations.  It is great to see all of your familiar faces after so much time.  So we look forward to presenting.  And thank you, Mr. Vellone, for the introduction.

If we can go to -- we will skip the picture slide and go to slide 3.

Other presenters have already given a fairly detailed background on how we got to where we are today.  Borden Ladner Gervais, as counsel for the Association of Power Producers of Ontario, retained myself and Mr. Yauch as experts to dig into the impacts of changes to the export transmission service rate.

We were focused on providing for the Panel quantitative assessment of what those changes might be being considered under this proceeding.

In particular, we really looked at two different scenarios.  One is, what is an increase in the ETS rate likely to do for total costs to ratepayers using historical analysis, and what is total cost to ratepayers on a lowering of the ETS, and trying to provide guidance.

Ultimately, given the complex and convoluted nature of all this, and I think the presentations today and the excellent questions, we really wanted our evidence and the analysis that we did to underpin it to be as straightforward and transparent as possible at how the system operates, what are the flows of funds, and what ultimately is going to be paid by ratepayers, to provide as much insight for the Panel in your deliberations on this matter under this generic proceeding related to the uniform transmission rates and the ETS.

So if we can go to the next slide.

My colleague will dive into all of the details that result in how we got to these numbers, but the key takeaway is, based off of our analysis, a higher ETS rate will result in higher costs to customers based on a 2018 to 2021 period, and an ETS lowered to zero will result in savings for customers.

The notable takeaway is that a higher ETS will lead to lower congestion rents, lower market-based revenues, and the potential for higher hydro and wind curtailment, which is a direct cost to customers.

We believe in looking at this, and I believe the representative from Charles River Associates, you know, the intertie congestion price is a very unique, highly efficient allocation of export capacity to market participants and is providing a funding mechanism to ratepayers for those trades while at the same time offering a relief valve for the system in times when they have excess capacity.  And we will dig into that a little bit more in our presentation.

If you go to our next slide, our slide 5.

As presented in the evidence, I think it is important to recognize Ontario is highly interconnected with multiple jurisdictions having about 6,000 megawatts of intertie.  The majority is in southern Ontario, which is also our major load area in the province with multiple connections to Michigan, New York, and Quebec.  And those interties are used for both import flows and export flows.

The markets that are traded with over those ties are both wholesale markets similar to IESO's design, New York, MISO, but also vertically integrated utilities, Quebec and Manitoba.

If we can go to the next slide, please.

The flows on the system have been very consistent and the last presenter, Mr. Chapman, discussed how Ontario was a net importer, has been a net exporter.  A lot of that has to do with the ongoing variations in different market design, changing supply mix, changing economics and trade opportunities.

A significant amount of exports flow into our two wholesale markets due to price arbitrage opportunities.  So this is Michigan and New York, and those market interactions between IESO and those markets and including the vertically integrated, you know, recognize the value of the total eastern interconnect and that the most efficient generation in all of these markets is dispatched to flow and it is something that benefits ratepayers across all of those markets.

So there are times when low cost marginal generation from Ontario flows out to undercut higher cost marginal generation in other jurisdictions.  The same can be said in terms of imports at times when high-cost generation is operated in Ontario and there is an ability for imports to undercut.  So it is important to recognize not only do we have a lot of intertie capacity; it is used often.

If we can go to the next slide, please.

We think it is really important to recognize the uniqueness of the Ontario situation.  Ontario's supply mix has a significantly higher component of baseload generation, which is also related to lower marginal cost output.  We have a large nuclear generation portion, plus a lot of hydroelectric, and then on top have developed over the last decade a large amount of wind generation.  This gives Ontario, you know, a real advantage on a marginal cost basis, in terms of having lower costs -- which I will discuss on the next slide in a second.

But it also describes some of the operational challenges which the IESO presenter discussed in terms of having all of that baseload generation which in and of itself, is not as manoeuvrable as more flexible generation.

I think it is also important to recognize in all of this, both in terms of the amount of export flows but also in the baseload, that being an exporter and acting is not something that can be created over a day.  This is a trading activity that requires skill, support analysis and participation and having an economic opportunity, but also being ingrained in how the system is trying to -- and the system being the total interconnect between different jurisdictions -- is trying to dispatch marginal, the most cost-effective marginal generation.  It is very important to recognize.  And that less traders in the future due to less economic opportunity can restrict the release valve that may be needed at times.

And that while us as a firm perform a large amount of forecasting for a wide variety of clients, we also recognize the future is inherently uncertain and you won't know exactly what known unknowns or unknown unknowns hit Ontario and have to have evasive manoeuvres essentially made.  And this can, you know -- two examples that jump to our mind is the global financial crisis of 2008, 2007-2008, along with the most recent COVID demand reduction due to economic restrictions from government regulations.

If we can go to the next slide, please.

So as discussed, and we think this is a great comparator to show, you know, given the much higher amount of baseload generation, the average marginal cost of supply in Ontario is quite a bit lower than other neighbouring jurisdictions right now.  And that is even true when you go down into a more zonal basis within our neighbour to the south, in the New York MISO.  And that drives a lot of the export opportunities, but also creates -- that competition also really leans on the unique aspect in Ontario with intertie congestion pricing and that efficient allocation of capacity for the trade they can drive congestion rents that flow back to ratepayers.

So it is very clear, given where we stand today in the climates we have, that there is a lot of continued potential for Ontario to be flowing exports south for the overall efficient operation of all of the markets that are interconnected.

If we can go to the next slide, please.

While this slide can be a little confusing on first pass, we really believe it is very helpful at providing an example of how we get to intertie congestion pricing, congestion rents, the hour-by-hour calculation that the IESO goes through with market participants to determine what export flows occur, what are the costs to that flow and how that relates to the Ontario hourly Ontario energy price.

So this really gives a simplified stack of five export bids, of which the third bid, only half of it gets dispatched due to a intertie capacity limit.

The bids for that price, which is the intertie zonal price, set at $35, but HOEP in that hour is set at $15 based on the rest of the markets price setting.  So that creates an intertie congestion price of $20, of which flows under that will create congestion rents.

I think this is important to recognize.  We believe as a firm this is a very efficient way of allocating and is --as I believe the representative from Charles River Associates, is a unique construct in Ontario and something that needs to be considered in terms of any deliberations with respect to the ETS and its interaction and how we come to at least many of our conclusions from our analysis to share.

And given the differential marginal pricing between Ontario and neighbouring jurisdictions, there is more competition on these ties and therefore you can see more chances for congestion rents, depending on the level of ETS and the economic opportunities.

If we can go to the next slide and I will hand it over to my colleague to continue.
Presentation by Mr. Yauch:


MR. YAUCH:  Good afternoon, Panel.  So this graph gives you an idea of the value of congestion rents over the last four years that we looked at as part of our study.  We calculated it as being worth 500 million dollars, a bit more than 500 million, and you can see that two markets in particular, Michigan and New York, is where a vast amount of that congestion rent is generated.

Then the reason is that the price arbitrage between Ontario and those markets tends to be a bit higher than it is in the other markets.  So looking at the graph that my colleague showed earlier with the spread in prices between Ontario and neighbouring markets, markets like PGM and MISO in New York, that spread tends to be the highest.  So that is why the value of congestion rents on those interties tends to be the highest.

If we can go to the next slide, please.

So what we want to show here is that congestion rents are also very price sensitive.  Using the example that we have talked about, if an export bid stays the same and HOEP goes up, congestion rent will essentially decline inversely related to the increase in HOEP.

You can see that when you look at actual congestion rents created over the last four years, that as you move up the supply stack and HOEP increases and you are dispatching higher marginal cost units, you will see the congestion rents generated on the interties tends to go down.

And again this is part and parcel of the dynamic process that happens on the interties that, you know, congestion rent is a function of trading volumes and prices in Ontario, so you will see as prices change, so too will congestion rents.

If we can go to the next slide, please.

So we also want to highlight here that exports are pretty price sensitive.  So I think of these two lines here, the lighter blue one is actually a bit more important here and that is the volume of exports in terms of percentage of total exports over 2018-2021 by price.

You can see that up into about 15 dollars per megawatt per hour, that is where a majority of exports actually happen.  The reason is again as we go back to the uniqueness of Ontario compared to neighbouring markets, is that we have a vast amount of baseload supply that offers generally below $15 a megawatt per hour and in many cases zero dollar a megawatt per hour.  And that energy is very valuable when being exported into neighbouring markets, so you see a vast amount of exports occurring in those price ranges.

Once you go to 15 and 20 dollars and 25 and 30, the value of exports decreases simply because the price opportunity, the efficiency of energy finding the best value decreases.

If we can go to the next slide.  This is in response to an IR we got to look at 2022, and I think it was Mr. Chapman from the IESO today talked about this, is that congestion rents can occur even when prices aren't low, and that is the, I kind of call the beauty of congestion rent as we do it on the interties, is that energy will flow to where it is most economically efficient to flow.  And so you'll get times when HOEP might be 40 or 50 dollars, but someone is willing to pay four or five hundred dollars a megawatt-hour to export energy from Ontario into neighbouring markets.

And it gets this idea that congestion rents and exports are partly a result of Ontario's uniqueness and its baseload supply, but they're also the result of what is happening in neighbouring markets, so while things like Pickering getting retired in 2026, MRP comes into play, 2025 or whatever date that we have settled on now, that you could still have congestion rents happening simply because the supply mix in other markets is also changing.

And if you look at places like New York and MISO and PJM, they're going through vast changes in their supply mix as well as Ontario, and in many cases they're noting that they may have capacity shortfalls.

So congestion rents may not be as extreme as they were in 2020 and 2021, but there may be many hours -- as you can see here, this is over almost a whole month in the winter -- that congestion rents can be quite material.  And again, that money -- we can talk about it.  I know there are a lot of questions on it today -- will flow back to ratepayers, but it will also allocate the transmission capacity to who values it the most.

If you can go to the next slide, please.

So this is the methodology.  And I don't think we need to walk through it in detail, but at a high level we went through on an hourly basis and calculated congestion rents and all the different interties, and calculated all the export volumes, and then we went through and calculated all the congestion rents, and then we used HOEP as a proxy for a change in the ETS.

Now, we know they're two different things.  ETS is essentially transaction costs to pay for the transmission system and HOEP is a market-based price.

But we wanted to look at what happens to trades when the cost of exporting energy, whether it's to the ETS or HOEP, it wouldn't really matter, when that cost changes.  And so what we did is we took all the export volumes, congestion rents, and historical basis, and we changed -- we use a change in HOEP as a proxy for changing the ETS to calculate what occurs.

And then you can start to see the decline in congestion rents, the decline in export volumes, and the decline in market revenues that you generate through exporting less energy.

We also came to a couple of conclusions on hydro curtailment and wind curtailment.  Now, for hydro curtailment we looked at the change in export volumes on either side of the marginal cost of the high marginal cost of hydro units in Ontario.

We used a publicly available number from OPG's rate filing of 14.40, but we know that marginal costs will vary for hydro, so there is certainly some wiggle room here, but we tried to look at, you're either exporting this energy when it's below 14.40 or you're spilling it.

So if you increase the ETS by nearly five dollars you start to see what happens on the export volumes on either sides of that wedge.

And for wind we essentially did the same thing and we changed the exports from zero dollars to 4.69, over the change in exports, and we're assuming that now that you are not exporting that as a result of a higher ETS you're going to curtail wind, and then we calculated those values, which we lay out I think in the next slide, which we can go to now.

So this is what happens when you increase, according to our analysis, when you increase the ETS from $1.85 to $6.54, which is one of the proposals.  Now, there is a couple things we just need to highlight.  You see the total congestion rent over 2018 to 2021 time period, and then you see the ETS revenue at $1.85, and then line C or row C, that's the decline in export volumes based on using HOEP as a proxy for change to the ETS, and you get lower ETS volumes.

You settle on row E -- it is very important that while export volumes decline the higher ETS actually more than offsets that decline and you actually earn more revenue.  But that only gives one part of the picture, in our view.

Our analysis said, what happens to all the other parts of the business.  It's the kind of the thing that the IESO was talking about, both operational, but what happens on the interties with congestions -- with congestion rents.

So we started walking through those different categories.  So we have lower -- we have increased wind curtailment, which most wind generators are made whole for curtailment.  Then we have lower market revenues, because you are just exporting less energy, so you're going to earn less market revenue that flows from export customers to Ontario.  You have lower congestion rent.  And then you have hydro spill as well, increasing costs of hydro spill, which again, for most -- rate-regulated for sure, but most contracted assets, they're made whole for spill.

So then we add it all up.  You get a 42-million-dollar net cost to Ontario ratepayers, and what that does is it tries to look at the system in its entirety that Ontario has noted throughout today and throughout most submissions through this proceeding, is a fixed-cost system, that transmission and generation, it is one big bucket, and it is almost all fixed costs.  It is not a dynamic market like other markets.  It is almost everyone is being made financially whole.

And so when you decrease revenues flowing from the outside into the inside, then you actually increase the cost that has to be borne solely by Ontario ratepayers.

Go to the next slide.

So next slide is, we were asked to look at what happens if you lower it to zero dollars, and we did the exact same analysis that it described on the previous slide, just backwards.

And what you see is you get quite a big increase in export volumes.  It goes to 86 terawatt-hours over the four years.  That seems a lot, because it's only a small decline from 1.85 to zero, but exports are very price-sensitive at that ridge.  And we saw it in one of the earlier slides.  We had a percentage of volume -- the volume of exports that happen right around zero dollars.

And it is easy to think about it if you look at a place like New York, where we export a lot of energy, Beck sitting on one side of the river, Moses sitting on the other.  They're very similar margin cost units.  So when you lower the ETS by $1.85 you will start to see quite a material increase in exports from Ontario, simply because the price spread between those two markets is quite low.

And then we go through the different impacts, and again, the hydro is done the same way as looking at the change in export volumes on this ridge of the marginal cost of hydro, and then you get to Ontario ratepayers benefits by $33 million over those four years.

Now, this is our last slide, and I will kind of leave it at this.  There was a lot of discussion on, these numbers are small in terms of the context to the system, and we recognize that.  The system is over 20 million, maybe 30 million a year.  This is small potatoes.  But things like the benefits from MRP are in this range of value.

Every change in the market that increases the economic efficiency of the market in the short-term provides benefits significantly over the long-term.  And so while the numbers seem small, we think it is important just to look at what these types of changes do to total system costs in the short-term, but then that will probably trickle through in the long-term over the market design.

So I think with that, we're done, and we're happy to answer questions.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  Mr. Sardana.
Questions by the Board:


MR. SARDANA:  Thank you, Ms. Anderson.  Thank you, Mr. Lusney and Mr. Yauch.  That was an excellent presentation.

I am almost loath to ask this question, and, you know, I am sure Ms. Anderson will make me hear about all of that later, but have you conducted -- did you do any kind of formal price elasticity analysis on ETS?  You kind of allude to it throughout.  You have got many slides that are -- you know, you have got changes in ETS and changes in volumes and things like that.  But did you do any kind of formal statistical analysis to come up with that?

MR. YAUCH:  No.  No.  At a high level we wanted to be transparent, simple, and straightforward to look at and just look at actually what happens in different price buckets.

Secondly, there is a sort of a data shortage that, you know, congestion rents are done in PD minus 1, pre-dispatch minus 1, the hour before real time.  We don't have zonal prices historically for PD minus 1, so there would have been this kind of margin of error in a price elasticity, so we thought it was easier to look at actually what happened in real time based on HOEP.

MR. LUSNEY:  We also didn't have access to export bid data and price quantity pairs that we would be able to kind of loop back, and it was something that we sought but we weren't able to gain access to.

MR. SARDANA:  Yeah, and I guess that is why various statements by the IESO and others directionally, I think they agree with your study, and directionally I think you are quite comfortable in your analysis, yes.

MR. YAUCH:  We think numbers like the congestion rent numbers are beyond directionally accurate.  They're pretty accurate, that given the inverse relationship between HOEP and congestion rent, that those would be probably pretty close if you actually had the bid data from exporters.

MR. SARDANA:  Okay.  I think that is it for me, Lynne, thank you.

MS. ANDERSON:  Mr. Zlahtic.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  I need a new mouse.

Mr. Lusney and Mr. Yauch, good afternoon.  I just want to bolt on to something Mr. Sardana said about the quality of the presentation, and it was very good, and that and the exchange you had with Mr. Sardana knocked off a pile of my questions.

I do have one.  The one other thing I do want to note, though, was the Power Advisory report.  Mr. Lusney, during the technical conference, you characterized this whole situation as -- what was the word you used?  I think it was convoluted.

I just want to thank you for the Power Advisory report because I thought it was a good hand holding piece of evidence and a report that really explained things quite nicely.  So thank you for that.

I just have one question.  In your Power Advisory report -- and you don't have to turn it up, it was in paragraph 86 if you want to go back to it, but there is no need.  And you talk about data limitations and data that is available in other jurisdictions that is not available via the IESO.

And Mr. Yauch or Mr. Lusney -- I forget who it was --said you were talking about price quantity pairs for exports, for example, and I am sure there is other things.

One of the things I would really appreciate if you would address or assist APPrO in addressing in its submission is talking about data limitations, vis a vis what is available in other jurisdictions, and any suggestions as to what data the IESO should be making available, if you could do that.

MR. LUSNEY:  Yes.  I am speaking for our counsel, but we can work with them to describe that.  It is something that we believe -- you know, the IESO is embarking or is moving through market renewal program which is expected to enhance the market.

In our professional view, markets are great at enacting efficiency in a proper allocation and dispatch the system.  But for market participants to be as efficient as possible, but also to ensure that you are getting the right outcomes for ratepayers, you need information from those markets and clarity and transparency is a foundation to build efficient market outcomes, and data is needed to do that.

I will note that I believe the IESO has made some actions towards releasing some more data.  It is both market data and planning.  And I am not sure if I can --what's been published as part of their revenue requirement, but I believe there is other stuff there.  But we will work with our counsel to help with our arguments on that -- or submission, I should say.

MR. YAUCH:  I think at a high level we can say right now every single wholesale market in Ontario -- in North America provides price quantity pairs.  They are scrubbed for the market participants, but they're provided in every single market and that's mandated.

So Ontario is very clearly an outlier when it comes to data provisions from the wholesale market.

MR. LUSNEY:  For example, in terms of the other Canadian wholesale market, in Alberta you can go and for every hour that the system has been in dispatch, you can see every price quantity pair that's been submitted by every market participant.  You can see where it has cleared.  It gives you a much better analysis on hypothetical outcomes because you can see the supply stack for each hour and determine where you are going.

You also then get information on what the system situation that was operating under.  So are there constraints or unique circumstances that need to either be considered in your analysis, or removed to try and provide an appropriate base line for longer term trends.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  So I guess I characterized what I was saying as a question.  It was a request.  Okay.  I apologize for that.

I guess the question is, is that with some of the data that you can identify, will it improve -- do you think it will improve the functioning of the export market, in terms of -- you know, you improve the function of a market.  It may enhance the capturing of revenues for all of the participants.

MR. LUSNEY:  I think it will improve the efficiency which may or may not be higher revenue.  It might be more congestion costs to ratepayers as there is more competition on the intertie.

I think until we open it up, trying to understand that might be a little difficult.  We think the direction of our analysis as it relates to the ETS will continue to be in that direction, we just might be more fine-tuned.

But in terms of actual market participants and operators, you would just expect the market to be more efficient with more data.  You would understand where you could potentially fight for space, for lack of a better way of saying it.

MR. ZLAHTIC:  Okay, thank you.  That is all I have.

MS. ANDERSON:  Thank you.  Just a couple of questions.  So what your analysis did is you looked at the zero ETS.  You looked at the 6-dollar-plus ETS and did the analysis around that.

We have heard today about some, you know, perhaps cost allocation principles of free riders and the use of the transmission system.

Did you look at all at any sort of sweet spot?  You know, obviously as the regulator, we have to look at balancing all competing interests and so you have kind of shown us the bookends.  Any thought?

MR. LUSNEY:  Excellent question.  We did not.  We stuck to kind of what our mandate was.  We recognize that and I think you would have seen in the transcript we were asked similar questions by intervenors.  But really we are trying to provide, you know, straightforward and transparent guidance for you, the Panel, to kind of understand the impacts.

MS. ANDERSON:  The buck stops with us.

[Laughter]

MR. LUSNEY:  Exactly.

MS. ANDERSON:  So then the only other question is you heard a bit of our discussion today about the notion of the monolithic ratepayer, and the fact that perhaps different ratepayers are affected differently depending on whether we're talking about ETS or the TRCA payments.

Did you think about that at all?  Your report refers only to sort of ratepayers as one entity.  Did you look at that at all?  Or is it just you know, the...


MR. YAUCH:  There was one part in our report where we kind of say, well, there are different ratepayers, there is class A and class B.  You allocate the costs differently.

As this proceeding has kind of trickled its way through, you are seeing how the TRCA is disbursed, how it goes through commodity costs down to distributors, that class A class B distinction comes to the forefront I think, right.  Whereas if you allocated it to how congestion rents are allocated in most of the markets to transmission owners, it is -- I think it is a different question.

So that is I think partly a process of how the TRCA and congestion rents get kind of backed through to ratepayers, and Ontario is taking the approach where it goes to this wholesale essentially commodity costs whereas other markets have done it a little differently.  But we also allocate congestion rents differently here.  The ICP is different than other markets, so it is all part of the uniqueness of Ontario as compared to neighbouring jurisdictions.

MR. LUSNEY:  We also -- I am not sure where it's mentioned in our evidence or it's not, but some discussion today in terms of customer classes is we talked about exporters being -- I believe Mr. Chapman referred to them as curtailable.

I think it is important to recognize we don't have an official definition for that.  We don't have an official class for that sort of thing, and I think to at least my understanding as part of this generic proceeding is these are things that the panels are starting to look at and I think that is very encouraging.

MS. ANDERSON:  Okay, thank you.  Those were my questions.  And just before we close it off, I am just going to turn to my fellow Panellists because we did schedule time if we thought we wanted to circle back on anything else.  Is there anything that has come up in your mind and that you wanted to circle back with anyone else on, or further on with Power Advisory?

MR. SARDANA:  Ms. Anderson, I wonder would there be merit in the three of us taking two minutes in our breakout room and having a quick discussion and coming back?

I know I am asking for everyone's indulgence here.

MS. ANDERSON:  Sure.  I think that is fine.  I think, thank you very much, Mr. Lusney and Mr. Yauch, for your presentation today.  Again, another very helpful presentation and that's been true of the whole day, I will say.  It has been extremely helpful to the Panel.

But maybe we will take five.  Why I want people to stick around is we had a few words that we wanted to say about submissions and the event scheduled for the 8th.  But we will try to keep ourselves to five minutes if we go into a breakout room and we will be back shortly, then.
--- Recess taken at 2:43 p.m.
--- On resuming at 2:47 p.m.
Procedural Matters:


MS. ANDERSON:  Okay.  Thank you, everyone.  It always takes me a minute to get my screen to where I want it to be.

So the simple answer is, we don't have any further questions for anyone.  I will just repeat again we were very pleased with the presentations that were made, and they were very helpful to us.  And so I thank you for focusing in on key issues and, you know, reasonable brevity to focus in on those issues, so I do appreciate that.

But what I wanted to close off with is a discussion of Procedural Order 2.  And I am getting it up on my screen.  So on April the 8th -- or, sorry, April the 8th -- August the 8th we have scheduled an untranscribed discussion among the parties, and what we've said there is that it is really trying out a different approach, a discussion amongst the parties, to help synthesize the evidence, share perspectives, discuss options, preferences, opportunities, pitfalls, et cetera.  That is what the PO says.

We don't have much further guidance for the parties on this discussion.  It is intended to provide an opportunity for an informal dialogue.  There may be an opportunity to see if there are areas of commonality.  Staff will be there to assist in kicking off any discussions, but it wasn't our intention to have a facilitator.

If you find the forum helpful, then carry on.  There's scheduled one day, but there is two additional set aside if you need it.  If you are not finding it helpful, feel free to conclude those discussions.  It is really for the benefit of the parties and to see whether there is something, you know, in making those submissions that they would be, again, some commonality that might be helpful to the Panel.

After it is done, staff will follow up to see if the forum has been useful and, if not, perhaps you have some thoughts on whether it would be useful in other circumstances other than the one that we have set out here.

So we just want to learn from whether the approach was helpful.

You might find it helpful to walk through the issues list and see whether there are any points of consensus, but as far as the actual submissions, we're expecting that obviously you will cover what rate you think the OEB should set for the ETS rate and the reason for that rate, and likely ranging between the zero dollars to the 6.54 per megawatt per hour.

But we would also find it very helpful to hear about the term you think the OEB should set for that ETS rate.  For example, should it be the term for the Hydro One JRAP application?  Should it be an indefinite rate?  And if so, should there be a trigger for another review and what that trigger should be?

Should it be shorter than the five-year term because of changes we may be expecting in the energy sector with the MRP we have talked about, the shutdown of Pickering or, you know, electrification, or anything of those sorts of things that you might be thinking are happening?

It would be also helpful if you were to highlight in your submissions what principles you think we should be weighing when we're setting the ETS rate.  And as we're weighing them, what weight should we be giving to those principles?  Are those generally accepted regulatory principles, and some of which we heard about today?  Are there principles related to what we heard about the FERC order that applies in the States?  Should we be looking at just the lowest overall cost to the Ontario market?  Should it be who is paid for the transmission assets and that are being used for the exports?

So these sorts of principles may be something that would be helpful for the parties to discuss on the 8th.  We're leaving that up to you.

And finally, the submissions, I think as we just talked about towards the end, it would be helpful for parties to consider whether further studies or reports by Hydro One or the IESO would be helpful for the future, such as we heard of for, you know, proposals for maybe a different non-fixed rate design for the ETS at some point in the future.  Or as we talked about at the end, any proposals from parties about additional data disclosure from the IESO on the market that would be helpful that perhaps are commonly disclosed in other jurisdictions related to exports.

So those are some of the thoughts that we had related to those submissions.  They're due by all parties on September the 2nd, and then all parties can reply to those submissions by September the 23rd.  And just a reminder that reply submissions are supposed to reply to the submissions, not introduce new concepts at that point.

And that is -- that's really all the guidance we had at this point.

So unless there are any procedural matters that anyone wanted to raise, any points of clarification, I will give you the opportunity.  And if not -- I will give people a second.  I am not seeing any -- I think we will close out today's session, again with our thanks.  I think the Panel has left -- is leaving today with much better information, much better understanding than we came in with, and that was the goal.  So I think the Panel has accomplished its goal for having this presentation day.

So thank you very much.  And we will close off.

And, yes, Ms. Sanasie, yes, we would like the Commissioners to go into our breakout room.  Thank you.
--- Whereupon the hearing concluded at 2:53 p.m.
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